
 
If you require further information, please contact: Jemma Durkan 

Telephone (01344) 352209 
E-mail: jemma.durkan@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
 

THURSDAY 16 DECEMBER 2010 
 
 
TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD 
 

 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Joint Waste Disposal Board on Thursday 
16 December 2010 at 6.30 pm in the Function Room, Fifth Floor, Easthampstead 
House, Town Square, Bracknell.  An agenda for the meeting is set out overleaf. 

 
 Mark Moon 
 Project Director 
 

Members of the Joint Waste Disposal Board 
 

Bracknell Forest Council: Councillor Mrs D Hayes 
 Councillor McCracken 

 
Reading Borough Council: Councillor W Swaine 
 Councillor T Stanway 

 
Wokingham Borough Council: Councillor R Stanton 
 Councillor G Cowan 

 
 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
 

If you hear the alarm: 
 

1 Leave the building immediately 
2 Follow the green signs 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so 
 



 

JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD 
Thursday 16 December 2010 (6.30 pm) 

Function Room, Fifth Floor, Easthampstead House, Town Square, Bracknell. 
 

AGENDA 
 
 Page No 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
2. APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 Members are required to declare any personal or prejudicial interests 
and the nature of that interest, in respect of any matter to be 
considered at this meeting.  
 

 

4. MINUTES - 21 SEPTEMBER 2010  1 - 6 
 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Joint Waste Disposal 

Board held on 21 September 2010.  
 

 

5. URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS   

 To notify the Board of any items authorised by the Chairman on the 
grounds of urgency.  
 

 

6. PROGRESS REPORT  7 - 18 
 To inform the Board of progress since the last meeting.  

 
 

7. JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL USER SATISFACTION SURVEYS  19 - 36 
 To inform the Board of the results of two user satisfaction surveys.  

 
 

8. JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL WORK PROGRAMME  37 - 40 
 To adopt the proposed Work Programme.  

 
 

Reports Containing Exempt Information 

9. RISK REGISTER  41 - 46 
 To note the updated Risk Register.  

 
 

 



JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD 
21 SEPTEMBER 2010 

(6.15  - 7.05 pm) 
 
Present: Bracknell Forest Borough Council 

Councillor Mrs Dorothy Hayes MBE 
Councillor Iain McCracken 
 

 Reading Borough Council 
Councillor Tom Stanway 
 

 Wokingham District Council 
Councillor Gary Cowan 
Councillor Rob Stanton 
 

Officers Oliver Burt, Reading Borough Council 
Peter Butler, Reading Borough Council 
Janet Dowlman, Bracknell Forest Council 
Dave Fisher, Reading Borough Council 
Kevin Holyer, Reading Borough Council 
Steve Loudoun, Bracknell Forest Council 
Mark Moon, Wokingham Borough Council 
Vincent Paliczka, Bracknell Forest Council 
Pete Thompson, Reading Borough Council 
Allan Tiplady, Wokingham Borough Council 
 

Apologies for absence were received from:  
 Councillor Swaine 

  
 

1. Quorum  
The start of the meeting was delayed by 15 minutes as a quorum was not present 
until 6.14pm.  As this was not the first time a quorum had not been achieved until 
sometime after the intended start of the meeting, it was agreed that a report should 
be prepared proposing an amendment to the constitution to permit members to 
nominate substitutes, if necessary. 

2. Election of Chairman  
RESOLVED that Councillor Mrs Hayes be elected Chairman of the Board for the next 
year. 
 
Arising from this decision, Councillor McCracken expressed his thanks to Councillor 
Stanton for the excellent job that he had done in chairing and leading the Board 
through some difficult times.   

3. Appointment of Vice-Chairman  
It was agreed to defer the appointment of a Vice-Chairman. 

4. Declarations of Interest  
There were no declarations of interest. 

Agenda Item 4

1



 

5. Minutes - 1 July 2010  
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Waste Disposal Board held 
on 1 July 2010 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
In response to questions arising on the minutes, the Board was advised that: 
 
• There had yet to be a response from Green Machine as the latter was still 

preparing its business plan. 
 
• The Fire & Rescue Service and insurers were being kept informed of progress 

in completing the outstanding fire safety work. 

6. Urgent Items of Business  
There were no urgent items of business. 

7. Project Update  
The Board considered a report informing it of progress since its last meeting on 1 July 
2010.  The report covered: 
 
• Operations and facilities including actions being taken following another 

incident of abuse towards a member of staff at Smallmead; the trial of a mini-
MRF at Longshot Lane; new arrangements for recycling wood; and the re-use 
activity. 

 
• A request from the contractor to re-let the haulage contract earlier than 

provided for in the contract in order to allow time to acquire new vehicles if 
necessary. 

 
• A request from the contractor to allow a relaxation of the requirement to add 

the re3 logo to the haulage contractor’s fleet. 
 
• Proposed revisions to the height barriers and access controls at both 

Household Waste Recycling Centres. 
 
• Recycling Performance. 
 
• The latest position on the Use of re3 Facilities by West Berkshire residents 

and on the legal agreement relating to the Lakeside Energy from Waste 
Facility.  

 
In response to the report, the officers were congratulated on the establishment of the 
mini-MRF at Longshot Lane. 
 
Arising from the issues of good governance raised regarding whether the Chairman 
and Project Director should be from the same authority, it was agreed that it would be 
timely to look at clarifying the matter in the joint agreement. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1 The progress made since the last meeting on 1 July 2010 be noted; 
 
2 The early procurement of a new haulage contract be endorsed; 
 

2



 

3 The relaxation of the requirement for vehicles hauling re3 waste to be liveried 
with the re3 logo be endorsed . 

 
4 The changes to the access controls at both Household Waste Recycling 

Centre’s be approved. 
 
5 That a review of the Joint Agreement be undertaken to ensure that it 

remained fit for purpose. 

8. Annual Financial Statement  
The Board considered a report summarising the present financial position of the joint 
waste PFI.  The report sought to conclude the management of finances in the 
2009/10 year, detailed the emerging position in the current year and presented the 
first draft of the budget for the 2011/12 year. 
 
The Board was advised that the major reasons for a projected underspend of 
£170,000 against the budget were the fall in contract waste tonnage, a significant 
reduction in inflation (from 4% to 1.7%) and business rates not increasing as much as 
expected following the revaluation of the sites. 
 
The budget for 2011/12 was based upon estimated tonnages derived from a waste 
modelling exercise which the Councils had completed in conjunction with the 
Contractor in July 2010.  
 
RESOLVED that the contents of the Annual Financial Statement be noted. 

9. Work Programme  
The Board considered a report on progress made against the Work Programme 
agreed at the 2009 Annual General Meeting.  
 
Of the objectives set, only one item, the issue of a Joint Waste Authority, had not 
been specifically covered during the preceding year by mutual agreement. 
 
Members of the Board were being invited to attend a Workshop on waste 
management within the re3 partnership.  The initial workshop was to be pitched at 
two levels, firstly, to set partnership priorities, and, secondly, to inform members 
about developments within waste management.  It was then intended to hold a 
second session at which WRG would be invited to attend.  In the period between the 
two workshops, it was intended that the re3 Project Team and WRG would work 
together to develop proposals to address the priorities identified by members.  As 
such the second workshop, should take the form of a series of proposals for member 
consideration. 
 
It was proposed that the Work Programme would be developed during the course of 
the first workshop and then be formally agreed by the Board at the December 2010 
meeting.  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1 The issues from the 2009/10 Work Programme which had been addressed be 

noted. 
 
2 The initial waste management workshop be held on the evening of 13 October 

2010. 

3



 

 
3 A new Work Programme for 2010/11 be developed at, or immediately 

following, the forthcoming workshop session on waste management with a 
view to it being formally adopted at the Board’s meeting in December 2010. 

10. Audits of the re3 Joint Waste PFI  
The Board considered a report informing it of the process to be adopted for future 
audits of the re3 Joint Waste PFI. 
 
The Board noted that it was proposed that the re3 councils should work together to 
audit their shared PFI contract.  This was to avoid inconsistency, utilise resources 
effectively and ensure a robust and coherent audit process.  The Audit process would 
be carried out in accordance with the usual standards of such a procedure.  Terms of 
Reference would be agreed in advance and in liaison with appropriate officers at 
each of the three councils. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1 The re3 joint waste PFI be audited biennially, starting in 2011. 
 
2 With both the council partnership and ongoing contractual arrangements with 

WRG in mind, each audit look at: 
 

• Finance  
 
• Facilities 
 
• Governance 
 
• Relationships 

 
3 Reading Borough Council carry out audits, in its role as administering 

authority, liaising with the Audit Teams at Bracknell Forest Council and 
Wokingham Borough Council as appropriate. 

11. Reading Borough Council Scrutiny Panel Recommendations  
The Board considered a report on the recommendations of the Reading Borough 
Council Scrutiny Panel review of the re3 Joint Waste PFI Contract.  The Scrutiny 
Panel had recommended that: 
 
• The annual report produced by re3 should include a section that looked at 

emerging technologies and considered what might be appropriate to 
incorporate in future years; 

 
• Re3 should investigate appropriate technology to sort out non-residents of the 

three councils and how a charge to cover re3 costs in disposing of waste be 
made; 

 
• More effort should be made by the three councils to educate their residents 

about what could and what could not be recycled and how to minimise their 
waste.  

 

4



 

The Board discussed briefly the recommendations, in particular the third relating to 
educating residents.  It was noted that the issue which had been at the heart of the 
scrutiny panel’s deliberations had been the handling of food waste and what advice 
was offered to residents. 
 
RESOLVED that  
 
1 The recommendations of the Reading Borough Council Scrutiny Panel review 

of the re3 Joint Waste PFI Contract be noted; and,  
 
2 A partnership approach be adopted to addressing the Reading Borough 

Council Scrutiny Panel recommendations as part of the 2010/11 Work 
Programme. 

12. re3 Partnership Response to DEFRA Review of Waste Policies 2010  
The Board considered a report inviting it to respond to a call for evidence from 
DEFRA in relation to a review of waste policy in England.  The deadline for a 
response was 7 October 2010.  A briefing paper set out some of the key issues the 
Board needed to consider  
 
The Panel had no additional comments to add to the points already raised in the 
briefing paper and invited the Project Manager to prepare his response accordingly. 
 
RESOLVED that the views expressed in the review of waste policies briefing paper, 
be endorsed as the basis of the Board’s submission to DEFRA in relation to the 
review of Waste policies. 

13. Exclusion of Public and Press (S100A)  
RESOLVED that pursuant to section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended and having regard to the public interest, members of the public and press 
be excluded from the meeting for consideration of item 13 which involved the likely 
disclosure of exempt information under category 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act: 
 
• Information relating to the financial or business affairs any individual person 

including the authority. 

14. Risk Register  
The Board received and noted a report containing exempt information relating to its 
Risk Register. 
 
The Board noted the latest position regarding the Risk Register.  In response to a 
request for any comments, it was suggested that, if possible, it would be helpful to 
know in future what the risk was in financial terms too. 

15. Use of re3 Facilities by West Berkshire Residents  
The Board was advised that following the protracted discussions with West Berkshire 
Council regarding a payment to cover the cost of its residents using the re3 facilities, 
the Council had offered a settlement of £262,500 to cover the payment due for 
2008/09, £12,500 less than the minimum being sought.  Whilst some regret was 
expressed about the failure to offer the amount sought, the Board considered that it 
would be in the best interests of the residents of the three partner councils to accept 
the offer and get the money in the bank rather than embarking on further 

5



 

negotiations, particularly at a time when West Berkshire Council was seeking to 
establish its own facility in 2011. 
 
RESOLVED that the Project Director arrange for a legal agreement to be drawn up 
on the basis of the £262,500 payment agreed with West Berkshire Council for 
2008/09 and to cover all other retrospective and future cost of the use of re3 facilities 
by West Berkshire residents; the agreement covering 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012 
could be on an annually renewable basis to cover any on-going use of the facilities. 
 

 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

6



TO: JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD 
 16th December 2010  
 

JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD - PROJECT UPDATE 
(Report by the Project Director) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Joint Waste Disposal Board of progress 

since its last meeting on 21st September 2010. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 To note progress made since the last meeting on 21st September 2010. 
 
2.2 That Members note the clarification of access arrangements at the Household 

Waste Recycling Centres as detailed from 3.21 to 3.28. 
 
3. SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

Operations and Facilities 
 
3.1 The results of the HWRC User Satisfaction Survey are contained within a separate 

report to the JWDB. 
 
3.2 Attached to this report, at Appendix 4 is a proposed memorandum from the members 

of the JWDB to staff, at both the Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRC), in 
recognition of the continued high levels of satisfaction expressed by site users. 

 
3.3 Members have previously indicated their preparedness to acknowledge the 

contribution of HWRC staff in this way.  
 
3.4 Works on the improvements to the fire detection and prevention system within the 

MRF at Smallmead continue. According to the most recently received activity report, 
work is slightly ahead of schedule. A completion date of 4th February is the current 
expectation. 

 
3.5 The contractual obligation on WRG to make use of Planners Farm composting facility 

in Bracknell expires in March 2011. WRG have embarked upon a process to ensure 
that the green waste currently delivered directly to Planners Farm can be processed 
in accordance with the PFI Contract after that date.  Any specific cost implications of 
this will be communicated as soon as we are made aware of them. 

 
Retail Outlet Replacement 

 
3.6 Members will be aware of the undertaking within the PFI contract for a retail outlet at 

which items could be safely refurbished, repaired and made available for re-use. 
 
3.7 Despite the undertaking made by the Contractor in the PFI contract, neither 

Smallmead or Longshot Lane lend themselves to accommodating retail activity, and 
retail-only visitors. Once this became apparent, and in consideration of the needs of 
local charities and waste related enterprises, the councils’ PFI Project Team advised 
the Contractor to focus on an off-site collaboration on a wholesale (rather than retail) 
basis. 

 
3.8 After several presentations and updates at previous Board meetings, the nature of 

that collaboration now appears to be taking shape. 

Agenda Item 6

7



 
3.9 The Contractor has thrown out a ‘net’ over the period of late summer and autumn of 

2010. The intention was to identify a charity, or charities, who was both capable and 
willing to work with the Contractor and the PFI Project Team in delivering the 
equivalent of the originally envisaged retail function.  

 
3.10 The process was not a competition but had it been one, the clear winner would have 

been Sue Ryder Care.  
 
3.11 Sue Ryder Care is a charitable organisation which provides palliative and end-of-life 

care. They are well established in the re3 area and also active nearby via their beds 
at the Nettlebed Hospice. In addition, Officers understand that there are plans for Sue 
Ryder Care to take over management of services provided at the Duchess of Kent 
House Hospice in Reading during 2011. They have 370 charity shops and have 
capacity and partnerships in place to ensure that items which are made available for 
re-use can be made suitable for resale. For further information on Sue Ryder Care 
please visit the website (suerydercare.org.uk). 

 
3.12 Representatives of Sue Ryder Care were most active in responding to requests for 

information and they have demonstrated both an existing capacity to work with us at 
the HWRC’s and a genuine appreciation of the requirements we have.  

 
3.13 The Contractor is in the process of ensuring that Sue Ryder Care can satisfy our 

contractual needs for information and ascertaining some further information around 
governance. The PFI Project Team have been clear that the process should be about 
enabling this sort of activity to happen but it is also very important that such diligence 
work (as happens with other ‘sub-contractors’ to the Contract) is carried-out. 

 
3.14 Once all final checks are carried-out satisfactorily, it is hoped that Sue Ryder Care 

will be able to begin benefitting from the resale of items delivered by re3 residents to 
Smallmead and Longshot Lane as soon as the New Year. 

 
3.15 Once the arrangement has begun and is working well, it is intended to advertise it to 

re3 residents. This will benefit the process because residents are likely to seek out 
the chance to donate and protect the items, in transit. 

 
3.16 It is the intention of the Contractor to agree a tenure for the arrangement with Sue 

Ryder Care. At the end of that period, and assuming that other organisations put 
themselves forward, the Contractor may select a different re-use/refurbishment 
partner. 

 
Haulage Contract Re-let 

 
3.17 Members will recall approving the early commencement of the haulage market 

testing process at the preceding Joint Waste Disposal Board (21st September 2010). 
 
3.18 The Contractor has issued pre-qualification questionnaires and, following input from 

Officers, intends to issue 6 bidders with an invitation to tender. 
 
3.19 Officers have liaised with the Contractor and have confirmed that the specification 

should seek to ascertain the most beneficial outcome in terms of price and 
performance. To do this, the specification will cover options for the age of the 
vehicles, whether they are liveried or not and the ISO (International Organisation for 
Standardization) standard required. 

 
3.20 The Contractor will now proceed with the tendering process and Officers will inform 

Members of the result at the earliest opportunity.  
8



 
 

Height Barriers and Access Controls 
 
3.21 At the last Joint Waste Disposal Board, Members approved changes to the access 

controls at the re3 Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRC’s).   
 
3.22 Officers wish to clarify the change in respect of trailers in order to ensure that there is 

no misunderstanding.  
 
3.23 The report to the JWDB in September focussed on the changes to the prevailing 

‘booking-in’ procedure for vehicles which would be unable to access the sites 
because of the height barriers.  

 
3.24 The report also included the following text in reference to the use of trailers: “There is 

also a proposal to simplify the access controls for trailers to enable all single axle 
trailers to access the site, subject to the waste carried being of household origin”. 
Officers wish to further clarify the access arrangement for trailers. 

 
3.25 In common with many other sites, the intention at the re3 HWRC’s is to limit the size 

of trailer that is permitted. This is intended to achieve the following: (i) limit the 
amount of waste that can be delivered so that it is suitable for the majority of 
household users and perhaps less convenient to traders who may wish to 
masquerade as householders and, (ii) ensure safe and prompt access and egress for 
trailers once inside the HWRC. 

 
3.26 As Members will be aware, the initial means of gauging the size of a trailer was by 

length. The access controls agreed in 2009 set the limit at trailers no longer than 6 
feet in length.  

 
3.27 That system proved problematic because there appear to be many trailers which are 

just over 6 feet in length. In fact there appears to be no standard length of trailer – the 
upshot of which is that it is very easy, in trying to be pragmatic, to ‘trade-up’ to 7 and 
8 feet in length on the basis that it is “only a bit over the limit”. 

 
3.28 With that in mind, and following consultation by the Contractor, it was decided to 

propose that the length of trailer is not used to determine access. The amended 
procedure seeks that single axle trailers be allowed access and that double-axle 
trailers be denied access. That was the intention of the previous report on this issue 
and the detail which this report now seeks to clarify.  

 
Finance 
 

3.29 The year to date outturn for 2010/11 is attached under Appendix 1. 
 
3.30 The Project is currently projecting a £400,000 collective underspend against budget.  
 
3.31 Contract tonnage remains significantly lower than forecast. If the current trend 

continues, contract waste will be over 10,000 tonnes lower than the tonnage 
assumed in budget setting in November 2009. 

 
3.32 The saving associated with reduced tonnages is tempered by the cost of inflation. 

Inflation was budgeted at 2.5% based on indications at the time, but inflation in April 
2010 had risen to 5.4%. 

 
3.33 Bracknell and Wokingham have seen their proportion of contract waste drop in 

comparison with the budgeted allocation of tonnages; conversely Reading has seen 
9



an increase. This is particularly true of landfill, which is why the outturn shows 
significant savings for Bracknell and Wokingham but no saving to Reading. 

 
3.34 The Contract provides £100,000 per annum (indexed) of funding to be used for waste 

minimisation initiatives, including educational and promotional work, operation of the 
visitor centres, and waste minimisation activities. 

 
3.35 Over the last 4 years any unused funds have been rolled over to the subsequent 

year, and the cumulative surplus is now in excess of £120,000. The PFI Project 
Team has proposed to the Contractor that £120,000 be refunded to the Councils at 
the end of the financial year. The Contractor is seeking Board approval for that 
repayment. This money will be allocated to the individual Councils in proportion to 
their historic contribution to the waste minimisation payment. 

 
3.36 The draft budget for 2011/12 has been updated to incorporate recent tonnage 

information, the relevant HWRC allocations as determined by the recent user survey, 
and other minor refinements. This information has been shared with the accountants 
at each authority. A summary can be found under Appendix 2.  

 
3.37 The outcome of this update is a reduction in budget for Bracknell and Wokingham of 

£261k and £269k respectively, with an increase of £116k for Reading, primarily for 
the reasons stated in 3.33 above, and movement in HWRC allocations. 

 
3.38 A statement of the Management budget and year to date expenditure is included 

under Appendix 3.  
 
3.39 The current expenditure on the Management budget is £177,500 below the annual 

budget. 
 
3.40 Note that we are still to receive some invoices relating to legal and financial advice 

regarding the additional EfW capacity. Invoices relating to this issue have been, and 
will continue to be, allocated to Reading and Wokingham only.  
 
 
Performance 
 

3.41 Bracknell’s year to date NI192 result is 40.8%. 78% of waste is being diverted from 
landfill. 

 
3.42 Reading’s year to date NI192 result is 34.8%. 68.5% of waste is being diverted from 

landfill. 
 
3.43 Wokingham’s year to date NI192 result is 41.6%. 77.7% of waste is being diverted 

from landfill. 
 
3.44 As noted in the September 2010 report, we should continue to treat these results with 

some caution. Results are significantly influenced by seasonality; the first half of the 
year is invariably the best for recycling performance. The second half of the year 
invariably results in lower levels of performance, which negatively impacts upon the 
annual result. 

 
3.45 However, when comparing the average partnership NI192 rate for the year to date 

with the same period last year, performance is up 1%. 
 
3.46 The average partnership rate of diversion is up 32% on this time last year. This 

significant increase is due to the full opening of the Lakeside EfW plant.  
 

10



3.47 HWRC diversion rates, which are a contractual rather than statutory indicator, are 
good; at Smallmead 75% of waste has been diverted from landfill in the year to date. 
This is 9% up on the same period last year. 

 
3.48 At Longshot Lane 66% of waste has been diverted from landfill in the year to date. 

This is 4% up on the same period last year.   
 

Risk Register 
 
3.49 The Risk Register is included within the agenda for this meeting of the Joint Waste 

Disposal Board.  
 
3.50 Following a request by Members, and where it is possible to do so, the Risk Register 

now contains an assessment of the financial cost of each risk.  
 

Use of re3 Facilities by West Berkshire Residents 
 
3.51 No further progress has been made since the last Joint Waste Disposal Board 

meeting.  
 
3.52 Officers held two meetings with colleagues from West Berkshire in July, at which the 

proposed re3 methodology for calculating the West Berkshire repayment (relating to 
the use by West Berkshire residents of re3 facilities) was described in detail and 
apparently agreed. As a result, re3 Officers were of the strong opinion, that the 
methodology had been agreed. Officers from West Berkshire Council have now 
indicated that they do not accept the methodology put forward by re3.  

 
3.53 Officers from West Berkshire Council have been in contact with re3 Officers over the 

period since the last JWDB meeting. They have made two informal proposals for the 
methodology. 

 
3.54 Both proposals would see a repayment from West Berkshire lower than that which 

would arise from the proposed re3 methodology. 
 

DEFRA Waste Review and Consultation 
 
3.55 The Secretary of State for the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 

the Rt Hon Caroline Spelman MP announced, earlier in the year, that the 
Government will be undertaking a full review of waste policy in England. 

 
3.56 An accompanying call for evidence was issued and, at the last JWDB, Members 

endorsed, as the basis for a collective response from the re3 partnership, a 
previously circulated briefing note. 

 
3.57 Following the meeting, and in advance of the deadline, an re3 response was sent to 

DEFRA and acknowledged. 
 
3.58 Officers understand that the results of the Review will be known in the Spring. 
 
 

Lakeside Energy from Waste Facility 
 
3.59 Negotiations between the contractor and the councils on specific details relating to 

the legal drafting of the agreement were, at time of writing, on the verge of being 
concluded. 

 

11



3.60 The Project Director has received notification that all the requirements DEFRA placed 
upon the councils in relation to the purchase of the additional capacity have been 
addressed.  

 
3.61 Negotiations between the re3 councils over the provision of an indemnity to Bracknell 

Forest Borough Council, who will be signatories to but not beneficiaries of the 
purchase, against risk associated with the additional capacity have been concluded.  

 
3.62 As soon as all documentation has been agreed the deed of variation will be 

completed. 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None  
 
 
CONTACTS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION 
 
Mark Moon, Project Director  
0118 974 6308 
Mark.moon@wokingham.gov.uk 
 
Oliver Burt, Project Manager 
0118 939 9990 
oliver.burt@reading.gov.uk 
 
 

12



Appendix 1 
 

re3 PFI Budget Monitoring
2010/11 Waste PFI Outturn 

BFBC RBC WBC TOTAL
£ £ £ £

Apr-10 Actual 497,336 685,025 772,635 1,954,996
May-10 Actual 481,157 602,854 713,664 1,797,675
Jun-10 Actual 485,946 684,446 739,851 1,910,243
Jul-10 Actual 484,102 635,306 709,172 1,828,580
Aug-10 Actual 441,736 621,984 728,334 1,792,054
Sep-10 Actual 461,383 742,234 733,559 1,937,176
Oct-10 Forecast 494,101 639,932 734,573 1,868,607
Nov-10 Forecast 467,340 635,699 689,813 1,792,852
Dec-10 Forecast 436,686 592,357 643,251 1,672,293
Jan-11 Forecast 486,706 633,645 730,330 1,850,681
Feb-11 Forecast 424,686 586,309 629,562 1,640,557
Mar-11 Forecast 483,569 660,951 710,976 1,855,497

TOTAL 5,644,749 7,720,742 8,535,720 21,901,211

Business Rates 106,441 138,055 144,829 389,325
Additional EfW 0 27,918 27,918 55,836
2010/11 Outturn 5,751,190 7,886,715 8,708,467 22,346,372

2010/11 Budget 6,011,277 7,874,406 8,949,805 22,835,488
Revised 2010/11 Budget 5,832,480 7,874,406 8,949,805 22,656,691
Variances Declared 94,000 0 0 94,000

Projected Underspend -175,290 12,309 -241,338 -404,319
-1.8%

Notes

re3 Management Budget/Costs not included

4. BFBC budget reduced to exclude non-contract waste (Housing no longer Council-run) and a 
proportion of the previously estimated business rates increase.

1. Based on actual invoices and forecasts
2. Trade waste currently included in RBC costs & budget until account is set up
3. Additional tonnes EfW split 50:50 between RBC & WBC. Assumed start Dec 10 (3300 tonnes).

5. The underspend takes account of the £94,000 variance that BFBC have reported.

2010/11 Budget v Actual & Forecast (Cumulative)

£1,000,000

£6,000,000

£11,000,000

£16,000,000

£21,000,000

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Actual
Budget
Forecast

  
 

13



Appendix 2 
 

Updated Nov 10
2011/12 Revised Budget

BFBC RBC WBC TOTAL

Baseline Payment 2,230,803£   2,893,367£   3,022,500£   8,146,671£      
Recycling Payment 351,909£      413,076£      419,248£      1,184,233£      
Efw Payment 1,325,493£   2,251,916£   2,336,274£   5,913,683£      
Composting Payment 366,621£      307,240£      572,856£      1,246,717£      
Landfill Tax 783,643£      1,011,275£   725,195£      2,520,112£      
Landfill Gate Fee 353,485£      456,165£      327,120£      1,136,769£      
Landfill Haulage 155,188£      200,267£      143,614£      499,069£         
Beneficial Use Payment 33,089£        49,207£        64,283£        146,579£         
Civic Amenity Site Payment 369,305£      331,891£      531,608£      1,232,804£      
Waste Minimisation Payment 51,749£        67,119£        70,114£        188,982£         
Hazardous Waste Pasthrough 69,736£        135,991£      194,023£      399,750£         
Rates 104,507£      135,545£      142,197£      382,249£         
Additional works 8,940£          12,322£        2,899£          24,161£          
RBC Trade Waste Collections -£                 226,492£      -£                 226,492£         
Rental income 392,618-£      241,611-£      -£                 634,228-£         
Rental Payment 173,398£      224,897£      235,933£      634,228£         
Royalty Payment 19,615-£        25,440-£        26,689-£        71,744-£          
Contamination Payment 24,073£        28,257£        28,679£        81,009£          

5,989,705£   8,477,976£   8,789,855£   23,257,536£    

PFI Grant 815,173-£      1,057,280-£   1,109,160-£   2,981,613-£      

Total Budget 2011/12 5,174,532£  7,420,696£  7,680,695£  20,275,923£  

Draft Budget (August 2010) 5,436,047£   7,304,355£   7,949,929£   20,690,332£    
Variance from Draft Budget 261,515-£      116,340£      269,235-£      414,409-£         

  
 
 

14



Appendix 3 
 
JWDB - re3 Waste PFI Management Costs
2010/11 Period to 30 November 2010

Employees Budget Cost Variance Comments
£ £ £

Salaries, NI & Super 166,800 88,006 -78,794 

Training (£3,000) 3,000 0 -3,000 

Employees sub total 169,800 88,006 -81,794 

Other Costs Budget Cost Variance Comments

Transport
Travel Expenses 1,000 236 -764 

Supplies & Services

Equipment 3,500 0 -3,500 

Stationery 500 0 -500 

Consultancy Fees 60,000 -17,072 -77,072 Includes accrual of £75k from 2009/10.

Purchase of Computer Equipment 6,700 95 -6,605 

Mobile Phones 400 28 -372 

Support Services/Recharges 20,900 13,933 -6,967 

Other Costs sub total £93,000 -£2,780 -£95,780

2009/10 Total £262,800 85,226£  -£177,574

Note: Eversheds invoices for legal advice regarding additional EfW are split equally between Reading & Wokingham.

Council Recharge (to date) £
Reading £31,741
Bracknell £21,745
Wokingham £31,741
Total £85,226

  
 
 

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



         
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  All Staff at Smallmead and Longshot Lane HWRC’s 

  
FROM: re3 Joint Waste Disposal Board  
 
SUBJECT: User Satisfaction Survey 
 
DATE: 16 December 2010 
 
 
 
This memorandum, from the re3 Joint Waste Disposal Board and on behalf of 
Bracknell Forest, Reading and Wokingham Borough Councils, is sent to all staff at 
Smallmead and Longshot Lane Household Waste Recycling Centre’s (HWRC’s) in 
recognition of their continued, excellent level of service. 
 
The recent User Satisfaction Survey has once again shown how much residents 
appreciate the service you deliver on behalf of the three councils. We know that the 
jobs you do are often difficult but we are grateful for the care and consideration you 
put into them. 
 
We hope we can all work towards further successes in 2011 and that you all enjoy the 
Festive Season and New Year. 
 
Thanks and Kind Regards, 
 
 
Cllr Dorothy Hayes,  (Chair of JWDB): 
 
 
Cllr Warren Swaine (Vice Chair of JWDB): 
 
 
Cllr Rob Stanton: 
 
 
Cllr Iain McCracken: 
 
 
Cllr Gary Cowan: 
 
 
Cllr Tom Stanway: 

17



18

This page is intentionally left blank



TO: JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD 
 16th Dec 2010  
 

JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD - PROJECT UPDATE 
(Report by the Project Director) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Joint Waste Disposal Board of the results 

of two user satisfaction surveys undertaken with firstly amongst public users of the  
Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRC) and, secondly, of council and local 
charity users of the waste transfer stations.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That Members note the findings of the independent User Satisfaction Survey of 

patrons at the Smallmead and Longshot Lane Household Waste Recycling 
Centres (HWRC). 

 
2.2 Members note the findings of the internal survey of Council users of the re3 

facilities, carried out by the re3 PFI Project Team. 
 
3. SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

Results of the 2010 User Satisfaction Survey at Smallmead and Longshot Lane 
HWRC’s 

 
3.1 The PFI contract requires that the Contractor carries out an annual user satisfaction 

survey at both Smallmead and Longshot Lane HWRC’s. 
 
3.2 Attached at Appendix 1 is a summary of the results of the 2011 survey and a brief 

commentary on the relationship to the survey’s carried out in the preceding two 
years. 

 
3.3 The survey was carried out between 29th September and 3rd October 2010 at both 

sites. During the survey period a total of 2,343 surveys were completed (1133 at 
Smallmead and 1,210 at Longshot Lane). 

 
3.4 Both sites were rated highly, in overall terms, by users. Of those surveyed 97% of 

users rated Smallmead as ‘good’ or ‘very good’. At Longshot Lane, 99% of surveyed 
users rated it as ‘good’ or ‘very good’. 

 
3.5 Staff at both sites were also identified as being helpful by users. At Smallmead, the 

survey showed that 95% of users thought staff members were helpful and at 
Longshot Lane the figure was 98%. Both were improvements on the previous year 
(91% and 88% respectively). 

 
3.6 The number of people who are approached by a member of staff whilst on site 

appears to be rising. At Smallmead, since 2008, the percentage indicated by the 
survey rose from 41% to 75%. At Longshot Lane the percentage indicated by the 
survey rose from 27% to 50%.  

 
3.7 Although we cannot assume there is a specific link between the results on 

‘helpfulness’ described at 3.5 above and those on the number of patrons being 
approached at 3.6, when looked-at together they do not suggest that staff 
intervention is unappreciated. 

 

Agenda Item 7

19



3.8 The frequency of use appears to be dropping over the course of the surveys. Since 
2008, those residents visiting once a week or more has come down from 15% to 9% 
at Smallmead and from 23% to 16% at Longshot Lane. 

 
3.9 Overall, the results of the survey appear to support the view that both sites, and the 

staff engaged in operating them, continue to be appreciated by users. 
 
3.10 The council’s re3 PFI Project Team will further analyse the results and engage with 

the Contractor in order to seek to maintain a high level of performance and user 
satisfaction. 

 
3.11 As in previous years, the User Satisfaction Survey incorporates a patronage survey 

to determine where users of the two sites are coming from. Details of the 2010 
patronage survey are included within Appendix 1 below. 

 
Results of the 2010 Transfer Station User Satisfaction Survey of Council Crews 

 
3.12 The councils’ re3 PFI Project Team surveyed colleagues who make regular use of 

the PFI facilities– principally, the transfer stations. This survey was conducted to 
assist with contract management; identifying any potential areas of improvement and 
making recommendations where necessary. 

 
3.13 Between September and November 2010, the survey was carried out to gauge the 

views and experiences of council users (refuse, street cleansing and grounds 
maintenance crews), and some charity users, in relation to the waste transfer stations 
at Smallmead, Reading and Longshot Lane, Bracknell.  

 
3.14 A total of 73 responses were received. These included most refuse, recycling, garden 

waste and street cleansing crews from Reading, Wokingham and Bracknell councils, 
as well as 16% of the approved charities and a number of other regular council users.  

 
3.15 The main results from this survey are detailed below. 
 
3.16 The survey report, attached at Appendix 2, contains a list of recommendations which 

the re3 PFI Project Team will now seek to address with the Contractor and, where 
appropriate, the individual councils. 

 
3.17 Council vehicles using the Smallmead transfer station experience longer and more 

frequent periods of queuing when accessing the site, than visitors to Longshot. On 
the surveyed days, 32% of Smallmead visits and 24% of Longshot visits, began with 
a queue of more than five minutes. When asked how they rated this wait, the most 
common response at Smallmead was “ok”, whilst the most common response at 
Longshot was “good”. No one vehicle waited more than 15 minutes to access the 
sites on the surveyed days, despite half of all respondents claiming to do so at least 
once a week.  

 
3.18 30% of all respondents said queuing to pass the first weighbridge was the biggest 

single factor affecting how long they spent on site. Those who provided comments 
indicated that they were often kept waiting behind private vehicles, some of whom 
are required to complete paperwork before accessing the site.  

 
3.19 However, most crews were happy with the length of time they spend on site, with 

70% of refuse, recycling and garden crews believing the contractual 20 minute 
turnaround policy to be about right. Of the remaining crews, 59% of Smallmead 
visitors and 88% of Longshot visitors rated the amount of time they spent on site as 
‘good’ or ‘excellent’.  

 
20



3.20 51% of all respondents said that other users were the biggest single factor affecting 
how long they spent on site. Those who provided comments indicated that they were 
often kept waiting on site while an articulated vehicle was loaded.  

 
3.21 Three Wokingham refuse/recycling drivers for whom English was not their first 

language, were unable to list the items of PPE required to access the site. All other 
respondents who were asked the survey through a face-to-face approach were able 
to provide a list. Of those who self-completed the questionnaire, only 36% responded 
to the question.  

 
3.22 At both sites the drivers considered the floor in one or more parts of the site to be 

slippery. 
 
3.23 Of those refuse and recycling drivers surveyed about their opinions of Smallmead, 

44% made comments that the signage and direction on site needs to be improved. At 
Longshot these comments were mainly about the inconsistent use of the traffic lights 
on site. 

 
3.24 At both sites, the level of staff helpfulness was rated highly and 83% of drivers 

believed that there were sufficient staff on site. Those who felt there should be more 
said that there should always be two people on the weighbridge and that more 
people were required to give instruction on when and where to tip. 

 
3.25 A total of 94% of respondents believed the process for collecting their weighbridge 

ticket to be efficient. 
 
3.26 A number of drivers had not received a weighbridge ticket on at least one occasion 

after tipping at one of the sites. These drivers were from across all three councils and 
services and totalled 13 from Longshot and two from Smallmead. In all but one of 
these cases, the drivers claimed to have had their ticket forwarded to their office later 
or had picked up their ticket when they next visited the weighbridge. 

 
3.27 Wokingham crews rated the Longshot site more highly than the Smallmead site, with 

an average rating out of 10 being 7.7 for Smallmead and 9.1 for Longshot. The most 
common reason given for these results was that Smallmead is a bigger, and 
therefore busier site which tends to have more articulated vehicles and subsequently 
more queues. 

 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Transfer Station – Regular User Satisfaction Survey Report (December 2010) 
 
CONTACTS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION 
 
Mark Moon, Project Director  
0118 974 6308 
Mark.moon@wokingham.gov.uk 
 
Oliver Burt, Project Manager 
0118 939 9990 
oliver.burt@reading.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

21



APPENDIX 1 

Results of 2010 User Satisfaction Survey at re3 Household Waste Recycling Centres. 
Both sites ranked highly for ‘overall rating of the centre’. At Smallmead 97% of users rating it as good or 
very good (98% in 2009 and 99% in 2008) while at Longshot Lane, 99% of users rating it as good or very 
good (98% in 2009 and 82% in 2008). 

Three fifths (61%) of users at the Smallmead HWRC rated the centre as good or very good for ‘onsite 
information and leaflets’, this was a decrease compared to the previous years (94% in 2009 and 93% in 
2008). Longshot Lane HWRC was ranked highly for ‘onsite information and leaflets’ with 86% of users 
rating it as good or very good, although this was a slight decrease compared to 2009 (91% in 2009 and 
52% in 2008). 

Users visiting the Smallmead HWRC that visit on a weekly basis have shown a decline (9%) compared to 
2008 (15%). Similarly, users visiting Longshot Lane HWRC on a weekly basis has declined (16%) 
compared to 2008 (23%).  

Similar to the previous years, users are more commonly visiting centres once a month at Smallmead it was 
32% in 2008, 31% in 2009 and 31% in 2010. At Longshot Lane it was 33% in 2008, 36% in 2009 and 40% 
in 2010. 

The percentage incorporating a visit to the centres as part of another trip has increased from 21% to 32% at 
Smallmead  and from 16% in 2008 to 31% at Longshot Lane. 

At both centres users being approached by staff members has increased compared to 2008 – from 41% to 
75% in Smallmead and from 27% to 50% in Longshot Lane. 

Users stating that staff members are helpful and polite has increased at both centres. Smallmead saw the 
largest increase (36%) of users stating that staff members are polite from 15% in 2008 to 51% in 2010. The 
largest increase for users stating staff members are ‘helpful’ was seen at the Longshot Lane centre from 
83% in 2008 to 98% in 2010. 

The percentage of general household rubbish being disposed of at both centres has increased at 
Smallmead there has been a steady increase from 42% in 2008, to 48% in 2009 and 53% in 2010. At 
Longshot Lane the increase has risen from 18% in 2008, to 57% in 2009 to 61% in 2010. 

The percentage of garden waste being brought to Smallmead experienced a 30% decrease compared to 
the 2008 survey, from 43% in 2008 to 14% in 2010. Meanwhile Longshot Lane also decreased; from 33% in 
2008 to 27% in 2010.  

Recognition of the re3 partnership was fairly low at both centres (34% Smallmead and 37% Longshot 
Lane), these results are fairly similar to the 2009 survey. When asked if users knew where they can find out 
more information about the partnership, the internet was the most popular information source at both 
centres, at Smallmead 39% stated the ‘re3 website’ and 24% stated the ‘council website’ and at Longshot 
Lane, 44%  stating the ‘re3 website’ and 29% stating the ‘council website’.  

 

22



Table 1 and 2 below present the key highlights from the survey while comparing this to the 2009 and 2008 
results: 
Table 1: Smallmead highlighted survey results 
  2008  2009  2010  
Rated the centre as good or very good for ‘overall rating of the centre’  99% 98% 97% 
Rated the centre as good or very good for ‘onsite information and leaflets’ 93% 94% 61% 
Rated the centre as good or very good for ‘cleanliness’ 98% 97% 97% 
Users visiting the centre weekly or more often 15% 14% 9% 
Users visiting the centre once a month 32% 31% 31% 
Users incorporating their visit to the centre as part of another trip 21% 29% 32% 
Users approached by staff members  41% 40% 75% 
Users stating staff members are helpful 94% 91% 95% 
Users stating staff members are polite 15% 19% 51% 
 
Table 2: Longshot Lane highlighted survey results 
  2008  2009  2010  
Rated the centre as good or very good for ‘overall rating of the centre’  82% 98% 99 % 
Rated the centre as good or very good for ‘onsite information and leaflets’ 52% 91% 86% 
Rated the centre as good or very good for ‘cleanliness’ 85% 100% 99% 
Users visiting the centre weekly or more often 23% 18% 16% 
Users visiting the centre once a month 33% 36% 40% 
Users incorporating their visit to the centre as part of another trip 16% 26% 32% 
Users approached by staff members  27% 57% 50% 
Users stating staff members are helpful 83% 88% 98% 
Users stating staff members are polite 11% 10% 36% 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



 
Patronage Survey 2010 
 
Smallmead HWRC 

  
Longshot Lane HWRC 
 

 

24



re3 Project Team – December 2010 - Page 1 of 12 

re3 Project Team      

WASTE TRANSFER STATION – REGULAR USER SATISFACTION SURVEY 
 
 
Background 
 
   Between September and November 2010, a user satisfaction survey was carried 
out with regular council users of the waste transfer stations in Smallmead, Reading 
and Longshot Lane, Bracknell. This survey was conducted as a means of managing 
the contract; identifying any potential areas of improvement and making 
recommendations where necessary. 
   Council vehicles in particular require that their visit to the transfer station to 
deposit their waste is quick and straight-forward. This ensures that that the crews 
are able to complete their work efficiently and cost-effectively each day. 
Subsequently the regular council users of the transfer stations were identified and 
these groups were given the opportunity to partake in the survey. In addition, those 
charities that tip under the council’s accounts were also approached.  
 
Methodology  
 
   Surveys with the refuse, recycling and garden crews were all conducted through a 
face-to-face approach. This was due to the limited literacy skills of some of the 
target group and so that clarification could be sought on the answers where 
necessary. All other surveys were provided for self completion by the crew.  
   The short survey consisted of questions to assess the respondent’s opinions on the 
site facilities, the running of them and their overall level of satisfaction. Where 
possible, questions were asked in a similar way as in the public user satisfaction 
survey, so as the results could be compared. 
 
Respondents 
 
   A total of 73 responses were received. This included most refuse, recycling, 
garden waste and street cleansing crews from Reading, Wokingham and Bracknell 
councils as well as 16% of the approved charities and a handful of other regular 
users. The overall composition of the respondents can be seen in Figure One. 
 

25



re3 Project Team – December 2010 - Page 2 of 12 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Reading Wokingham Bracknell
Council

Nu
mb

er
 of

 Re
sp

on
de

nt
s Charity Waste

Bottle Banks
Bulky Waste
Grounds Maintenance
Street Cleansing
Garden Waste
Recycling
Refuse

  
Figure One: Survey Respondents by Council and Material type. 
 
   In the majority of cases, the surveys were filled out by the driver of the crew. In a 
few cases however, the remaining crew members were also present, despite not 
always visiting the waste transfer station on a daily basis. 
 
   Unfortunately the data gained from the charity and street cleansing surveys is less 
detailed than that from the refuse, recycling and garden waste crews. This is 
because, where surveys were self-completed, not all questions were answered and 
very few comments were received to explain the answers given. In addition, whilst 
complete, or largely complete, survey sets were received for most groups; numbers 
of questionnaires received from the charities and Reading Borough Council’s parks 
team were limited. The results from these surveys may not therefore be 
representative of these groups as a whole.  
   Finally, it should be noted that there were language barriers in some cases. This 
was particularly true when talking to the Wokingham crews, as a large proportion 
did not speak English as their first language. Here every effort was made to make 
the questions understood and to understand the answers given, seeking clarification 
and justification where necessary.  
 
Results and Discussion 
 
Entering the Site 
    
   The results of the questions relating to how long vehicles have to wait in order to 
pass the weighbridge and access the sites are considerably varied and this can be 
seen in figure two. 
 
 

26



re3 Project Team – December 2010 - Page 3 of 12 

Longshot Lane

Every Day
Few Times Per Week
Weekly
Fortnightly
Monthly
Less than Once an Month

Smallmead

  
Figure Two: Responses to the question “How often do you wait more than 15 minutes to pass the 
weighbridge”. 
 
   The variability in these results may be a product of the different times in which 
the crews visit. This is because the comments received from the refuse and 
recycling crews indicate that the sites are busiest around break and lunch times and 
when the crews finish. This can be seen in figures three and four below. 
 

Longshot Lane

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

07:00-
08:00

08:00-
09:00

09:00-
10:00

10:00-
11:00

11:00-
12:00

12:00-
13:00

13:00-
14:00

14:00-
15:00

15:00-
16:00

Time

Nu
mb

er
 of

 Re
sp

on
se

s

  
Figure Three: Times considered busiest at the Longshot site.    
 

27



re3 Project Team – December 2010 - Page 4 of 12 

Smallmead

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

07:00-
08:00

08:00-
09:00

09:00-
10:00

10:00-
11:00

11:00-
12:00

12:00-
13:00

13:00-
14:00

14:00-
15:00

15:00-
16:00

Time

Nu
mb

er
 of

 Re
sp

on
se

s

  
Figure Four: Times considered busiest at the Smallmead site.    
 
   A fifth of the respondents however, responded by saying that the site was either 
not busy when they visited or that the busy periods varied, depending on when the 
large articulated vehicles were on site. Of these, 80% said they tended to only wait 
longer than 15 minutes either monthly or less.  
 
   It may however be that time spent queuing is perceived to be longer than it really 
is. This is because, with almost half of all respondents saying they queue for longer 
than 15 minutes at least once a week, it would be expected that on any given day, 
at least a proportion queue for this length of time. This was not the case on the 
surveyed days. This is shown in table one. 
 
Table One: Times spent queuing to access the sites on the days of the surveys. 
 

 <5 Minutes 5-15 Minutes > 15 Minutes 
Longshot 76% 24% 0% 
Smallmead 68% 32% 0% 

 
   Overall, the amount of time waited received mixed responses, but with the most 
common response at Smallmead being ‘average’ and at Longshot being ‘good’. The 
charities rated the length of time spent queuing, slightly better than the council 
vehicles, but it should be noted that as only four responses were received, the 
results from these surveys may not be representative of this group as a whole. 
 
 
 
 
 

28



re3 Project Team – December 2010 - Page 5 of 12 

On the Site 
 
Opening Hours 
 
   Respondents were asked how often they felt the site opening hours were sufficient 
for their purpose. In total, 83% of drivers said that opening hours were always 
sufficient, whilst 15% said they were usually sufficient. Only one person said they 
were never sufficient. This person was from a charity and they requested that the 
weighbridges be open more often at weekends. 
   Other comments received were both positive and negative. On one hand, some of 
the drivers were happy with the amount of flexibility offered, whilst on the other 
they commented that they were not always able to make the hours if they had 
experienced a breakdown or when working on a Saturday.  
 
Site Safety 
 
   The respondents were asked if they had seen a copy of the site rules at the 
facility. To this, 81% of Longshot visitors and 76% of Smallmead visitors said they 
had. 
   With this question however, it may be that respondents gave the answer they 
thought they should give. (Indeed this question had to be discounted from the 
Bracknell Street Cleansing responses as the answer ‘yes’ had been pre-filled on all 
questionnaires.) 
   The results were therefore tested by asking the drivers to list the items of 
personal protective equipment (PPE) they required to access the site. A total of 48 
drivers answered both questions, and the relationship between their answers can be 
seen in figure five. 
 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Incomplete List Basic List Extended List
Extent of PPE List Provided

Nu
mb

er
 of

 Re
sp

on
se

s

Don't Know
No but given copy
No
Yes and given copy
Yes

 Figure Five – Affect of site rules on knowledge of site PPE requirements (where the responses are 
those given to the question “have you seen a copy of the site rules on site today?”) 

Have you seen a 
copy of the site 
rules on site 

today? 

29



re3 Project Team – December 2010 - Page 6 of 12 

    
   Everyone who said they had seen a copy of the site rules, either on site or as a 
written copy, could provide at least a basic list of PPE required (Hard hat, steel toe-
capped boots and high visibility jacket) with a number producing an extended list, 
adding in trousers and gloves. As expected, those who had not seen the rules, were 
most likely to provide an incomplete or inaccurate list. It should be noted however 
that those who could not provide a list were all Wokingham refuse/recycling crews 
for whom English was not their first language. In addition only 36% of the 
respondents who self-completed the questionnaire, answered this question. 
   Of the refuse and recycling crews, only 66% claimed to have seen the copy of the 
site rules on site. It may therefore be that the most regular users no longer pay 
attention to signs and notices on site.  
 
   Respondents were then asked whether the sites felt like a safe place to visit and 
the results can be seen in figure six.  
 

Longshot Lane

Always
Usually
Sometimes
Never

Smallmead

  
Figure Six: Responses to the question “How often does the site feel like a safe place to visit?” 
 
   Approximately a third of all respondents thought that safety could be improved on 
the site. No one issue dominated the suggestions, but individual comments were 
made regarding the slippiness of the floors, the amount of traffic on site and the 
fact that not everyone obeys the lights. A couple of comments were also made 
however, that the staff are very safety conscious.  
 
Time Spent on Site 
 
   The biggest single factor affecting how long most drivers spent on site was ‘other 
users’ followed by ‘queuing to pass the weighbridge’ (Figure seven). Where 
comments were given however it can be seen that almost all of these responses 
relate to the loading of articulated vehicles and the use of private vehicles 
respectively.  
   The charities however responded slightly differently, with the main factor being 
the vehicle tipping time. 
 

30



re3 Project Team – December 2010 - Page 7 of 12 

Queuing to Pass the First
Weighbridge

Other Users

Own Vehicle Tipping Time

Complying With the Site Rules

  
Figure Seven: Biggest factors affecting how long crews spend on site.  
 
   Overall most crews are happy with the length of time they spent on site. In total, 
70% of the refuse and recycling crews thought the 20 minute turnaround time policy 
was about right, with only 3% of drivers believing it insufficient. Of the remaining 
groups, 88% of Longshot visitors and 59% of Smallmead visitors thought the length of 
time they spent on site was either ‘good’ or ‘excellent’, with only one person (a 
visitor to the Smallmead site) rating it as poor.   
 
Other on Site Factors 
 
   All survey respondents were asked to rate various aspects of the site they visit 
most often out of five and the results can be seen in table one and figures eight and 
nine. 
 

Longshot Lane

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18
20
22
24
26
28

Site
Appearance

Site
Cleanliness

Site Signage Site Layout Staff
Helpfulness

Nu
mb

er
 of

 Re
sp

on
se

s Poor
Fair
Average
Good
Very Good

  
Figure Eight: Rating of site aspects at Longshot 

31



re3 Project Team – December 2010 - Page 8 of 12 

 
Smallmead

0
2
4
6
8
10
12
14
16
18
20

Site
Appearance

Site
Cleanliness

Site Signage Site Layout Staff
Helpfulness

Nu
mb

er
 of

 Re
sp

on
se

s

Poor
Fair
Average
Good
Very Good

  
Figure Nine: Rating of site aspects at Smallmead.  
 
Table Two: Site qualities – ratings out of five.  

 
  Smallmead Longshot 

Average 4.3 4.3 Site 
Appearance Standard Deviation 0.8 0.9 

Average 4.0 4.2 Site 
Cleanliness Standard Deviation 1.0 0.9 

Average 4.0 4.2 Site Signage 
Standard Deviation 1.3 1.1 
Average 3.9 4.0 Site Layout 
Standard Deviation 1.1 1.1 
Average 4.2 4.5 Staff 

Helpfulness Standard Deviation 1.0 0.9 
 
   Table two shows that whilst results for the two sites are close, Longshot scores 
higher than Smallmead in every aspect. These results are therefore consistent with 
those given by the Wokingham crews.  
   Further details are given below. 
 
Site Appearance 
   No negative comments were made about the appearance of either site, but a 
handful of positive comments were received about the recent improvements to both 
sites. 
 
 
 

32



re3 Project Team – December 2010 - Page 9 of 12 

Site Cleanliness 
   The most popular comment about the cleanliness of the site, related to the 
condition of the floor. At both sites the drivers considered the floor in one or more 
parts of the site to be slippery and hazardous, with a total of six comments made. 
Comments were also received from other drivers however to say that the level of 
cleanliness was acceptable for a tip. 
   Another couple of drivers said that there were too many obstacles on the site. 
 
   The responses received within the questionnaires were quite consistent. For 
example, those people who had made comments about the cleanliness of the site 
needing to be improved for safety reasons, did not give the site the top mark in the 
safety question.  
 
Site Signage 
   Of those refuse and recycling drivers surveyed about their opinions of Smallmead, 
44% made comments that the signage and direction on site needs to be improved. 
Their comments included the fact that it was difficult to know where to go as a new 
driver, that hand signals can’t always be seen through the tilted windows, that more 
guidance is required in the recycling area and that the staff on site responsible for 
giving direction, do not always notice the waiting vehicles.  
   The comments received about Longshot Lane were mainly about the traffic lights 
on site. They said that the direction received would be poor for infrequent users, 
that the traffic lights are not always in use, and that even when the lights are 
green, they can be told to wait. In addition a comment was made that staff are not 
always around to guide the vehicles.  
   Overall the impression received was that a more consistent method of 
communication is required.  
 
Site Layout 
   The main comments made about Smallmead related to not having much space to 
manoeuvre (the doors being too close to the weighbridge) and to having to wait 
whilst articulated vehicles are loaded.   
   Most comments at Longshot were made about the entrance. Some drivers 
considered this tight and they also mentioned that there was a blind spot. In 
addition, they said that having the same entrance as the public, sometimes meant 
they had to queue unnecessarily. Instead they would like to enter from John Nike 
Way.  
   A comment was made at both sites however to say that the layout had improved 
since the changes. 
 
Staff Helpfulness 
   The overall impression received was that on the whole, the staff at both sites 
were very helpful and that the vehicle drivers found them friendly.  
   When asked if the sites had sufficient staff, 83% of drivers said yes, there were 
enough, whilst 17% said no, more were needed. In particular, four of the 40 refuse 
and recycling crews surveyed said more people were required to cover breaks on the 
weighbridge and two drivers said more people were required to give directions 
about where to tip. 
 
 
 
 

33



re3 Project Team – December 2010 - Page 10 of 12 

Weighbridge Procedures/Leaving the Site 
 
   A total of 94% of respondents believed the process for collecting their weighbridge 
ticket to be efficient. Four people said the process was not efficient, with one 
charity commenting that the same detailed information had to be processed each 
time and one refuse driver remarking that the process is inefficient when one of the 
weighbridge staff is on a break. A couple of people did however comment on the 
good use of proximity cards and another couple requested that they had them.  
 
   A number of drivers had not received a weighbridge ticket on at least one 
occasion after tipping at one of the sites. These drivers were from across all three 
councils and services and totalled 13 from Longshot and two from Smallmead. (No 
reference was made to dates however, so these occurrences may have been some 
time ago.)  
   One of these drivers later went on to say he received a hand-written ticket rather 
than an automatic one, however the remainder all claimed to have had their ticket 
forwarded to their office later or had picked them up when they next visited the 
weighbridge.  
   Two people also mentioned having previously received incorrect tickets.  
 
Comparison of Sites by the Wokingham Crews 

    
   Wokingham Borough Council crews, being situated geographically in between the 
two waste transfer stations, might theoretically use either site. Questions were 
therefore asked as to how they make their decision and the results can be seen in 
figure ten.  
 

Location
Queue Times
Supervisor Instruction
Site Appearance/Cleanliness

  
Figure Ten: Highest ranked factors affecting where Wokingham crews choose to tip. 
 
   The results show that the majority of crews choose where to tip solely, or mainly, 
based on the location of the site.  
   Of the Wokingham respondents (excluding the garden waste crews, who do not 
have the option to tip at Longshot), 45% said they usually use Longshot and 10% said 
they usually use Smallmead. In these cases, most crews said they occasionally made 
visits made to the other site, usually based on what day it is, and subsequently, 
where they are nearest to. Some crews however claimed that they never used the 
alternative site. 

34



re3 Project Team – December 2010 - Page 11 of 12 

   The remaining 45% of crews, claimed to tip equally at both sites. When asked 
what site they had tipped at on the day of the survey however, 78% of these had 
used Longshot. This is statistically high and may therefore suggest that the survey 
was carried out on days when the crews were working closer to the Longshot site. 
Alternatively it may be possible that some crews believe they should be tipping 
equally at both (biasing their answer to the first question), but that the second 
question shows the reality. 
 
   All Wokingham drivers surveyed, had visited both sites at some point in their 
employment. Consequently, the crews were asked to mark each site out of ten, in 
order to allow comparison of the sites.  
   A total of ten drivers gave Longshot a higher value than Smallmead, whilst only 
one gave Smallmead a higher value than Longshot. The remaining eight drivers gave 
the same value to each site. As a result, Longshot obtained an average rating of 9.1 
whilst Smallmead obtained an average rating of 7.7. The most common reason given 
for these results was that Smallmead is a bigger, and therefore busier, site which 
tends to have more articulated vehicles and subsequently more queues. This reflects 
what is seen in figure ten and is consistent with the earlier results. 
 
Additional Comments/Suggested Improvements  
 
   At the end of the survey the respondents were given the opportunity to add any 
further comments they felt relevant. These were varied and many related to the 
issues previously discussed. In particular the respondents reiterated the fact that 
they need better direction on when and where to tip on site and that they would 
like the better cleaning of the transfer station floors. However they also stressed 
the inconvenience caused when vehicles are loading. Some respondents therefore 
suggested positioning the vehicles so that crews could still tip, allocating a 
particular time for loading or redesigning the sites to have ramps like at Beenham.     
   Other suggestions included introducing a system whereby vehicles could jump the 
queue if their tipping bay was empty and allocating a time slot for private vehicles 
who have to complete paperwork.  
   Additional requests were also made for access to the conveniences on site.   
  
Comparison with HWRC User Satisfaction Survey Results 
 
   Table three shows a comparison between some of the results obtained from this 
study, with the results obtained from the HWRC User Satisfaction survey, which was 
also carried out in autumn 2010.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35



re3 Project Team – December 2010 - Page 12 of 12 

Table Three: Percentages of respondents rating the sites ‘good’ or ‘very good’. 
 

Longshot Smallmead  
Transfer 
Station 

HWRC Transfer 
Station 

HWRC 
Overall rating 
of the site 

100* 99 80* 97 
Site 
Accessibility 
(Queuing) 

72 94 55 94 

Time Spent on 
Site 

88** 97 59** 95 
Site 
Cleanliness 

84 99 70 97 
Staff 
Helpfulness 

87 98 68 95 
* Wokingham crews were asked to rate the sites out of 10. Marks of seven or above were assumed to 
be equivalent to good or very good.  
 ** Excluding results from refuse/recycling crews as the question relating to time spent on site was 
asked in a different format. 
 
   The table shows that the transfer stations are rated less highly than the HWRCs. 
This may be because the public visit the sites on a less regular basis than the council 
vehicles. Alternatively the public may have experience of using other sites to which 
they compare those in the re3 partnership. Finally the reason may simply be that 
the transfer stations are in need of a greater level of improvement than the HWRCs. 
   The Longshot site also scores consistently higher than the Smallmead site, both at 
the HWRC and transfer station. 
 
Recommendations 
 
• Supervisors at Wokingham could review knowledge of the site rules with the 

crews for whom English is not their first language – there is no suggestion of any 
failing but, since we were unable to gauge their full understanding, this would 
seem sensible. 

• That the contractor seeks to ensure there are two people on the weighbridge at 
busy periods, in order to minimise the likelihood of queues forming. 

• That the contractor should review how often and how thoroughly the floors in 
the transfer station are cleaned, in order to minimise the safety concern raised 
by the drivers.  

• That the contractor should review with its staff how they communicate with the 
drivers regarding when and where to tip, in order to maximise the level of 
consistency. 

• That the contractor should review with its staff what should happen when there 
are computer problems at the weighbridge. 

• That the contractor should review the positioning of articulated vehicles on both 
sites. 

 

36



 

 

TO: JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD 
 21st September 2010 
___________________________________________________________________________  
 

WORK PROGRAMME  
(Report by the Project Director) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 At the 2009 Annual General Meeting of the Joint Waste Disposal Board (JWDB), a report 

proposed the establishment of a Work Programme for the Board.  
 
1.2 At the 2010 Annual General Meeting (AGM), Members agreed to delay the setting of a 

work programme until the December meeting of the JWDB in order to incorporate the 
findings of a Member workshop.  

 
1.3 Following the Workshop, this report describes the proposed content of the Work 

Programme for 2010/11.  
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That Members adopt the Work Programme for 2010/11 which accompanies this 

report at Appendix 1. 
 
2.2 That Members agree a date for the second waste workshop (following that held on 

October 13th 2010). 
 
3. SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Background 
 
3.1 The Joint Waste Disposal Board (JWDB) established a Work Programme at the 2009 

AGM. 
 

Proposal 
 
3.2 Subsequent to the 2010 AGM, Members attended a workshop arranged by Officers on 

October 13th 2010. 
  
3.3 Members identified a list of priorities for the council partnership and these have been 

included within the Work Programme for 2010/11.  
 
3.4 Among the items included in the Work Programme is a second workshop and Members 

are requested to consider the suitability of, and their own availability on, the following 
dates: 

 
• 3rd March 2011 
• 10th March 2011 
• 17th March 2011 
• 24th March 2011 

 
 
3.5 The second workshop session, is intended to take the form of a series of proposals to 

Members which will respond to the priorities set in the first session. In this way, it is 

Agenda Item 8

37



 

 

hoped that Members will be informed as to how their priorities could be addressed -  
allowing them the opportunity to take strategic decisions.   

 
3.6 The new Work Programme already has a more strategic feel to it than its predecessor 

and it is hoped that in working through the items contained within it, the three councils 
can realise some of the potential benefits from their partnership and make improvements 
to the services which are associated with it. 

 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Report to September 2009 JWDB AGM 
 
CONTACTS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION 
 
Mark Moon, Project Director  
0118 974 6315 
Mark.moon@wokingham.gov.uk 
 
Oliver Burt, Project Manager 
0118 9399990 
oliver.burt@reading.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38



 

 

 
 
WORK PROGRAMME - APPENDIX 1 
 
JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD (16th  December 2010) 
 
The proposed Work Programme includes both regular items, which should be covered at each 
meeting, and those which it is initially intended to investigate in depth only once during the year. 
Some of the latter items may of course, at the request of the Board, be revisited as appropriate. 
No date has been allocated to the items below, Members may wish to request an item be added 
to the agenda for a specific meeting. 
 
 
REGULAR ITEMS – for regular review at Joint Waste Disposal Meetings. 
 
 
• PFI Financial Review  
• Council Performance Review  
• Contract Monitoring Review  
• Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy  

 
SPECIFIC ITEMS 
 
• Complete workshop programme with second session. 
• Review Case for kerbside glass collection. 
• Review local potential for increasing the use of re3 facilities. 
• Financial review of recycling. 
• Review potential for Food Waste processing. 
• Review potential for more entrepreneurial activities (councils and PFI contractor). 
• Review Trade Waste (collection) potential. 
• Review Communications Strategy – including use of social media. 
• Review and develop a common approach to enforcement (i.e. the steps before 

enforcement) for trade waste at HWRC, ‘contamination’ of kerbside, side waste etc. 
• Review carbon footprint/sustainability of material outlets. 

 

39



40

This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



JO
IN
T W

AS
TE

 D
ISP

OS
AL

 B
OA

RD
 R
ISK

 R
EG

IST
ER

Re
f

Ris
k

De
sc
rip

tio
n

Ris
k t

yp
e

ET
A 
(w
he
re 

kn
ow

n)
St
atu

s o
f 

Ris
k

Pr
ob
ab
ility

Im
pa
ct

Po
ten

tia
l M

itig
ati
on
s o

r R
es
po
ns
es

Ac
tio

ne
d M

itig
ati

on
s

Re
sp
on
sib

ility
 fo

r 
Mi
tig
ati
on
/R
es
po
ns
e

Es
tim

ate
d C

os
t

Co
mm

en
ts

15
a

LA
TS

: C
ou

nc
ils

 ex
ce

ed
 

all
ow

an
ce

s 2
01

5/1
6 t

o 
20

18
/19

 (N
on

-T
arg

et 
Ye

ars
)

RB
C 

an
d W

BC
 ar

e l
ike

ly 
to 

ex
ce

ed
 

the
ir L

AT
S 

all
oc

ati
on

s i
n t

his
 pe

rio
d. 

BF
BC

 is
 no

t e
xp

ec
ted

 to
 ex

ce
ed

 
un

til 
20

19
/20

. 
Fin

an
cia

l
pri

or 
20

18
/19

Liv
e

hig
h

hig
h

Co
un

cil
s p

roj
ec

t te
am

 to
 m

ain
tai

n a
 vi

ew
 of

 
loc

al 
an

d r
eg

ion
al 

ma
rke

ts 
an

d t
o s

tay
 

ab
rea

st 
of 

tec
hn

olo
gic

al 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

. 
Ma

xim
ise

 yi
eld

 of
 ex

ist
ing

 re
cy

cli
ng

 
co

lle
cti

on
 st

rea
ms

 (c
he

ap
es

t o
pti

on
, 

alt
ho

ug
h m

ay
 no

t b
e s

uff
ici

en
t o

n i
ts 

ow
n).

 
Pr

oc
ure

 ne
w 

pro
ce

ss
ing

 e.
g. 

foo
d w

as
te.

 
Alt

ern
ati

ve
ly 

the
 C

ou
nc

ils
 w

ou
ld 

ne
ed

 to
 

se
cu

re 
LA

TS
 pe

rm
its

 fo
r th

e p
eri

od
 up

 to
 

an
d i

nc
lud

ing
 20

18
/19

, o
r p

ay
 pe

na
ltie

s.

An
 ad

dit
ion

al 
10

,00
0 t

on
ne

s E
fW

 is
 be

ing
 

ne
go

tia
ted

. E
ve

n w
ith

 th
is,

 R
BC

 an
d W

BC
 

are
 ex

pe
cte

d t
o e

xc
ee

d t
he

ir L
AT

S 
all

oc
ati

on
s i

n 2
01

5/1
6 a

nd
 20

16
/17

 
res

pe
cti

ve
ly.

  
co

un
cil

s p
roj

ec
t te

am
 

an
d w

as
te 

off
ice

rs

Be
tw

ee
n £

6.6
 m

illio
n a

nd
 £7

.1 
mi

llio
n d

ep
en

din
g o

n l
an

dfi
ll t

ax
 

es
ca

lat
or.

Ba
se

d o
n c

os
t o

f la
nd

fill
ing

 ex
ce

ss
 to

nn
es

, p
lus

 th
e p

urc
ha

se
 of

 
LA

TS
 pe

rm
its

 at
 £1

50
 pe

r p
erm

it (
alt

ho
ug

h i
t s

ho
uld

 be
 no

ted
 

tha
t th

e C
ou

nc
ils

 co
uld

 de
cid

e t
o p

ay
 in

 ex
ce

ss
 of

 £1
50

 pe
r 

pe
rm

it i
ns

tea
d o

f s
im

ply
 pa

yin
g t

he
 £1

50
 pe

na
lty

, a
s t

his
 w

ou
ld 

av
oid

 fu
rth

er 
rep

urc
us

sio
ns

 of
 ha

vin
g t

o s
ha

re 
in 

the
 U

K 
fin

e 
fro

m 
the

 E
U)

.

16

LA
TS

: C
ou

nc
ils

 ex
ce

ed
 

all
ow

an
ce

 20
19

/20
20

 
(ta

rge
t Y

ea
r 3

 of
 3)

V,
dif

fic
ult

 to
 pr

ed
ict

 w
ith

 ac
cu

rac
y 

the
 lik

ely
ho

od
 of

 LA
TS

 co
mp

lia
nc

e 
at 

the
 en

d o
f th

e d
ec

ad
e. 

To
 

ac
hie

ve
 LA

TS
 co

mp
lia

nc
e, 

all
 3 

co
un

cil
s m

ay
 ne

ed
 ad

dit
ion

al,
 no

n-
lan

dfi
ll, 

pro
ce

ss
ing

 ca
pa

cit
y t

o 
su

pp
lem

en
t e

ne
rgy

 fr
om

 w
as

te 
an

d 
the

 im
pro

ve
me

nts
 th

ey
 w

ill 
ma

ke
 to

 
the

ir o
wn

 co
lle

cti
on

 sy
ste

ms
.

Fin
an

cia
l

pri
or 

to 
20

20
Liv

e
hig

h
hig

h

Co
un

cil
s p

roj
ec

t te
am

 to
 m

ain
tai

n a
 vi

ew
 of

 
loc

al 
an

d r
eg

ion
al 

ma
rke

ts 
an

d t
o s

tay
 

ab
rea

st 
of 

tec
hn

olo
gic

al 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

. 
Ma

xim
ise

 yi
eld

 of
 ex

ist
ing

 re
cy

cli
ng

 
co

lle
cti

on
 st

rea
ms

 (c
he

ap
es

t o
pti

on
, 

alt
ho

ug
h m

ay
 no

t b
e s

uff
ici

en
t o

n i
ts 

ow
n).

 
Pr

oc
ure

 ne
w 

pro
ce

ss
ing

 e.
g. 

foo
d w

as
te.

  
Alt

ern
ati

ve
ly 

the
 C

ou
nc

ils
 w

ou
ld 

ne
ed

 to
 

se
cu

re 
LA

TS
 pe

rm
its

 fo
r 2

01
9/2

0, 
or 

pa
y 

pe
na

ltie
s.

co
un

cil
s p

roj
ec

t te
am

 
an

d w
as

te 
off

ice
rs

Be
tw

ee
n £

4.7
 m

illio
n a

nd
 £5

.2 
mi

llio
n, 

de
pe

nd
ing

 on
 la

nd
fill

 ta
x 

es
ca

lat
or.

Ba
se

d o
n c

os
t o

f la
nd

fill
ing

 ex
ce

ss
 to

nn
es

, p
lus

 th
e p

urc
ha

se
 of

 
LA

TS
 pe

rm
its

 at
 £1

50
 pe

r p
erm

it (
alt

ho
ug

h i
t s

ho
uld

 be
 no

ted
 

tha
t th

e C
ou

nc
ils

 co
uld

 de
cid

e t
o p

ay
 in

 ex
ce

ss
 of

 £1
50

 pe
r 

pe
rm

it i
ns

tea
d o

f s
im

ply
 pa

yin
g t

he
 £1

50
 pe

na
lty

, a
s t

his
 w

ou
ld 

av
oid

 fu
rth

er 
rep

urc
us

sio
ns

 of
 ha

vin
g t

o s
ha

re 
in 

the
 U

K 
fin

e 
fro

m 
the

 E
U)

.

18
W

RG
 B

oa
rd

Th
e c

ou
nc

ils
 ar

e a
t ri

sk
 if 

the
y d

o 
no

t d
ev

elo
p a

nd
 m

ain
tai

n a
 

rel
ati

on
sh

ip 
wi

th 
the

 W
RG

 B
oa

rd.
 It 

is 
im

po
rta

nt 
tha

t th
e r

ela
tio

ns
hip

 is
 

on
e o

f e
qu

als
. In

 pr
ac

tic
e, 

no
 

rel
ati

on
sh

ip 
cu

rre
ntl

y e
xis

ts.

Co
ntr

ac
t 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt
Liv

e
hig

h
me

diu
m

Pr
ev

iou
s s

ug
ge

sti
on

s h
av

e i
nc

lud
ed

...3
60

 
de

gre
e f

ee
db

ac
k, 

6 m
on

thl
y l

ett
ers

 fr
om

 
JW

DB
 to

 W
RG

 B
oa

rd,
 an

 an
nu

al 
me

eti
ng

. 

Of
fic

ers
 ha

ve
 m

et 
the

 ne
w 

CX
 of

 W
RG

 an
d 

ha
ve

 a 
fru

itfu
l w

ork
ing

 re
lat

ion
sh

ip 
wi

th 
the

 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 W

RG
 B

oa
rd 

Me
mb

er 
for

 ou
r 

PF
I. O

ffic
ers

 ha
ve

 pl
an

ne
d t

o h
old

 a 
se

co
nd

 w
ork

sh
op

 (la
te 

20
10

 or
 ea

rly
 20

11
) 

at 
wh

ich
 W

RG
 an

d c
ou

nc
il o

ffic
ers

 ca
n 

res
po

nd
 to

 th
e p

rio
riti

es
 id

en
tifi

ed
 in

 th
e 

firs
t w

ork
sh

op
 (O

ct 
20

10
). 

re3
 M

gm
t T

m
Pr

inc
ipl

e o
f a

 lin
k, 

be
tw

ee
n t

he
 re

sp
ec

tiv
e B

oa
rds

, a
gre

ed
 w

ith
 

W
RG

 at
 JW

DB
 m

tg 
on

 25
 06

 08
. 

21
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 Fa
ilu

re 
(co

un
cil

s)

Th
e c

ou
nc

ils
 ar

e r
eq

uir
ed

 to
 ac

hie
ve

 
ce

rta
in 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 le

ve
ls 

wi
thi

n 
the

 co
ntr

ac
t. T

he
 co

ntr
ac

tor
 do

es
 

no
t a

cc
ep

t ri
sk

 fo
r p

erf
orm

an
ce

 
fai

lur
e d

ue
 to

 in
ad

eq
ua

te 
de

live
ry 

of 
ma

ter
ial

. T
he

 W
FM

 pr
ofi

le 
ch

an
ge

s 
ov

er 
tim

e (
e.g

. g
ree

n w
as

te 
jum

ps
 

in 
20

09
)

Co
un

cil
s

Liv
e

me
diu

m
hig

h

Co
un

cil
s t

o r
ev

iew
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
for

ma
tio

n 
an

d m
od

ell
ing

 fr
om

 co
un

cil
s p

roj
ec

t te
am

 
an

d m
ak

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 

ch
an

ge
s/i

mp
rov

em
en

ts 
as

 ap
pro

pri
ate

. 
Re

po
rt o

n J
oin

t W
as

te 
Au

tho
riti

es
 to

 JW
DB

 
on

 18
 06

 08
. D

raf
t p

rot
oc

ols
 fo

r c
ou

nc
il 

gro
up

s. 
Co

un
cil

s p
roj

ec
t te

am
 w

ork
ing

 w
ith

 
wa

ste
 of

fic
ers

 an
d a

cc
ou

nta
nts

.

Co
un

cil
 O

ffic
ers

 m
et 

on
 20

/05
/09

 an
d 

ag
ree

d t
o i

nv
es

tig
ate

 w
ay

s o
f w

ork
ing

 
tog

eth
er 

mo
re 

str
ate

gic
all

y t
o r

ea
lis

e t
he

 
be

ne
fits

 af
for

de
d b

y t
he

 P
FI.

 R
ep

ort
 to

 S
ep

t 
09

 JW
DB

re3
 M

gm
t T

ea
m,

 
co

un
cil

s p
roj

ec
t te

am
 

an
d w

as
te 

off
ice

rs

Ma
xim

um
 ex

po
su

re 
to 

Re
cy

cla
te 

Inc
om

e C
om

pe
ns

ati
on

 cl
aim

 = 
£1

.5m
illio

n i
n 2

01
0/1

1. 
Ind

ex
ed

 
an

nu
all

y a
cc

ord
ing

 to
 R

PI
X.

 

Th
e C

on
tra

cto
r is

 en
titl

ed
 to

 cl
aim

 fo
r lo

st 
inc

om
e o

n s
ale

s o
f 

rec
yc

lat
e d

ue
 to

 lo
w 

ton
na

ge
, p

oo
r c

om
po

sit
ion

, a
nd

 lo
w 

or 
ze

ro 
ma

rke
t v

alu
e.

22
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 Fa
ilu

re 
(C

on
tra

cto
r)

Th
e s

uc
ce

ss
 of

 th
e P

FI 
Co

ntr
ac

t 
rel

ies
 on

 th
e s

uc
ce

ss
ful

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 of
 th

e c
on

tra
cto

r. 

Co
ntr

ac
t 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt
Liv

e
me

diu
m

hig
h

Co
un

cil
s t

o m
on

ito
r p

erf
orm

an
ce

 of
 

Co
ntr

ac
tor

 to
 en

su
re 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 ris

k n
ot 

tra
ns

fer
red

 to
 co

un
cil

s. 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 an

d 
'ad

de
d v

alu
e' 

ini
tia

tiv
es

 to
 be

 en
co

ura
ge

d.
Co

ntr
ac

t M
an

ag
em

en
t, n

eg
oti

ati
on

s w
ith

 
co

ntr
ac

tor
, p

erf
orm

an
ce

 m
od

ell
ing

. 

re3
 M

gm
t T

ea
m,

 
co

un
cil

s p
roj

ec
t te

am
 

an
d w

as
te 

off
ice

rs

23
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 Fa

ilu
re 

(co
un

cils
) (
2)

Co
nta

mi
na
tio
n o

f c
ou
nc
il M

DR
 

aff
ec
ts 

bo
th 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 an

d 
co
st.

 W
hil
st 

the
 av

era
ge
 ra

te 
of 

co
nta

mi
na
tio
n w

ith
in 
Co

un
cil 

co
llec

tio
ns
 ha

s r
ed
uc
ed
, it
 is
 st

ill 
im
po
rta

nt 
tha

t a
ll c

on
trib

uto
rs 

(cr
ew

s, 
sta

ff, 
PR

) w
ork

 to
 re

du
ce
 

it's
 im

pli
ca
tio
ns
. C

on
tra

cto
r 

en
titl
ed
 to

 le
vy
 ad

dit
ion

al 
ch
arg

e 
an
d/o

r E
xc
us
ing

 C
au
se
 at

 
inc

rea
se
d l
ev
els

 of
 

co
nta

mi
na
tio
n.

Co
un

cils
 

Liv
e

hig
h

me
diu

m

Im
pro

ve
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
MD

R 
thr

ou
gh

 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

n w
ith

 re
sid

en
ts.

 In
vo

lve
 

co
lle

cti
on

 cr
ew

s a
nd

 ot
he

r c
ou

nc
il s

taf
f. 

Iso
lat

e a
rea

s w
ith

 po
or 

qu
ali

ty 
rec

ord
 an

d 
tar

ge
t th

em
 w

ith
 sp

ec
ific

 in
for

ma
tio

n o
r p

re-
pro

ce
ss

 th
eir

 w
as

te.

Co
un

cils
 P
roj

ec
t T

ea
m,

 W
RG

 an
d 

wa
ste

 te
am

s h
av
e d

ev
elo

pe
d a

n y
ea
r-

lon
g p

lan
 of

 ac
tio
ns
 to

 im
pro

ve
 re

sid
en
ts 

un
de
rst

an
din

g o
f c

on
tam

ina
tio
n w

ork
 to

 
ed
uc
ate

 an
d i
f n

ee
d b

e e
nfo

rce
 ag

ain
st 

ris
ing

 co
nta

mi
na
tio
n. 

Co
un

cils
 P
roj

ec
t 

Te
am

 lia
ise

d w
ith
 W

RG
 ov

er 
tria

ls 
for

 
im
pro

ve
me

nts
 in
 M

RF
 op

era
tio
n t

o 
red

uc
e '
rej

ec
tio
ns
'; t
he
se
 tri

als
 ar

e 
cu
rre

ntl
y t
ak
ing

 pl
ac
e.

Co
un

cils
/C
ou
nc
ils 

Pr
oje

ct 
Te

am

Co
nta

mi
na
tio
n p

en
alt
y p

ay
ab
le 

on
 al
l k
erb

sid
e M

DR
. 2

01
0/1

1 
pe
na
lty
 w
ill b

e c
£8

0k
.

Br
ief

ing
 no

te 
se

nt 
to 

co
un

cil
 te

am
s d

es
cri

bin
g n

atu
re 

of 
co

ntr
ac

tua
l ri

sk
s a

nd
 of

fer
 of

 as
sis

tan
ce

 (1
0/9

/08
). I

t is
 no

t th
e 

ide
al 

wo
rd 

for
 co

mm
un

ica
tin

g w
ith

 re
sid

en
ts 

bu
t 'C

on
tam

ina
tio

n' 
is 

the
 co

ntr
ac

tua
l te

rm
 ap

pli
ca

ble
 to

 th
is 

ris
k.

25

Re
vie

w 
of 

Fir
e 

De
tec

tio
n s

ys
tem

s 
O&

M 
Ma

nu
als

Ind
ep
en
de
nt 

ex
pe
rts

 as
se
ss
ed
 

the
 le
ve
ls 
of 

pro
tec

tio
n a

nd
 

de
tec

tio
n p

rov
ide

d t
hro

ug
h t

he
 

de
sig

n a
nd

 bu
ild
 co

ntr
ac
t. A

rea
s 

of 
im
pro

ve
me

nt 
fou

nd
. S

om
e 

co
ve
red

 by
 or

igi
na
l c
on
tra

ct 
an
d 

be
ing

 re
cti
fie
d b

y E
PC

 
co
ntr

ac
tor

. O
the

rs 
be
ing

 
pro

cu
red

 by
 W

RG
 se

pa
rat

ely
. 

Fa
cili

ty
Liv

e
me

diu
m

hig
h

Co
ntr

ac
tor

's 
res

po
ns
ibi
lity

 to
 m

itig
ate

.

Co
ntr

ac
tor

 an
d E

PC
 co

ntr
ac
tor

 ha
ve
 

be
en
 in
 di
sc
us
sio

ns
 an

d a
re 

se
ek
ing

 
res

olu
tio
n. 

Pr
oje

ct 
Dir

ec
tor

 ha
s w

ritt
en
 

to 
Co

ntr
ac
tor

 to
 re

qu
es
t a

ss
ura

nc
es
 

an
d r

es
olu

tio
n. 

W
RG

 ar
e p

rog
res

sin
g 

iss
ue
 w
ith
 E
PC

 co
ntr

ac
tor

 at
 a 

hig
h 

lev
el.
 W

ork
s o

ng
oin

g a
nd

 du
e f

or 
co
mp

let
ion

 Ja
n 2

01
1.

Co
ntr

ac
tor

re3
 P

roj
ec

t 
Mg

mt
 Tm

St
ev

e L
ou

do
un

, M
ark

 M
oo

n (
PD

), K
ev

in 
Ho

lye
r, O

live
r B

urt
, C

lar
e A

ylin
g

re3
 P
roj

ec
t M

an
ag
em

en
t T

ea
m 

- R
isk

 R
eg
ist
er 

co
un

cil
s 

pro
jec

t 
tea

m
Ol

ive
r B

urt
, C

lar
e A

ylin
g

wa
ste

 
off

ice
rs

Ja
ne

t D
ow

lm
an

, C
lai

re 
Le

wi
s, 

Pe
te 

Th
om

ps
on

, P
ete

 B
av

ey
sto

ck
Co

un
cil

s
Br

ac
kn

ell
 Fo

res
t, R

ea
din

g, 
W

ok
ing

ha
m 

Bo
rou

gh
's

Agenda Item 9

41



42

This page is intentionally left blank



re3
 Pr

oje
ct 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Te
am

 - R
isk

 R
eg

ist
er 

co
un

cils
 pr

oje
ct 

tea
m

Ol
ive

r B
urt

, C
lar

e A
ylin

g
wa

ste
 of

fic
ers

Ja
ne

t D
ow

lm
an

, C
lai

re 
Le

wis
, P

ete
 Th

om
ps

on
, P

ete
 Ba

ve
ys

toc
k

Co
un

cils
Br

ac
kn

ell
 Fo

res
t, R

ea
din

g, 
W
ok

ing
ha

m 
Bo

rou
gh

's

Re
f

Ris
k

De
sc
rip
tio
n

Ris
k t
yp
e

ET
A (

wh
ere

 
kn
ow

n)
Sta

tus
 of

 
Ris

k
Pr
ob

ab
ilit
y

Im
pa

ct
Po

ten
tia
l M

itig
ati
on

s o
r R

es
po

ns
es

Ac
tio

ne
d M

itig
ati

on
s

Re
sp
on

sib
ilit
y 

for
 

Mi
tig
ati
on

/R
es
p

Es
tim

ate
d C

os
tC

om
me

nts
 

1R
ete

nti
on

 of
 kn

ow
led

ge
 of

 co
ntr

ac
t

Th
e c

ou
nc

ils 
wil

l b
e a

t a
 di

sti
nc

t d
isa

dv
an

tag
e i

f 
the

y d
o n

ot 
ret

ain
 a 

su
ffic

ien
t k

no
wle

dg
e b

as
e 

rel
ati

ng
 to

 th
e c

on
tra

ct.
  T

he
 ris

k a
ris

es
 fro

m 
the

 
hig

h d
ep

en
de

nc
y u

po
n a

 fe
w 

me
mb

ers
 of

 st
aff

. 
Co

ntr
ac

t 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt

 
Liv

e
low

hig
h

Bu
ild

 kn
ow

led
ge

 ba
se

 w
he

re 
it d

oe
s n

ot 
alr

ea
dy

 
ex

ist
. P

rom
ote

 w
ide

r u
nd

ers
tan

din
g o

f P
FI 

ac
ros

s 
co

un
cils

. 

Pr
oje

ct 
Ma

na
ge

r p
rop

os
ed

 (2
00

9) 
str

uc
tur

e t
o 

su
pp

ort
 an

d e
mb

ed
 th

e P
FI 

wit
hin

 co
un

cils
 - 

red
uc

ing
 ris

k a
nd

 br
oa

de
nin

g k
no

wle
dg

e b
as

e. 
W
as

te 
Of

fic
ers

 at
ten

d r
e3

 M
gm

t T
ea

m 
me

eti
ng

s 
an

d C
on

tra
ct 

Mg
mt

 m
ee

tin
gs

. R
e3

 Pr
oje

ct 
Te

am
 

pro
du

ce
 br

ief
ing

s. 
re3

 M
gm

t T
m

Ou
r a

bil
ity
 to

 dr
ive

 th
e c

on
tra

ct 
as

 w
e w

ish
 is

 
fou

nd
ed

 on
 ou

r a
bil

ity
 to

 m
ak

e t
he

 co
ntr

ac
tor

 
de

live
r th

e c
on

tra
ct.

 W
ith

ou
t th

e r
ete

nti
on

 of
 an

 
un

de
rst

an
din

g o
f th

e c
on

tra
ct 

thi
s w

ill b
e m

ore
 

dif
fic

ult
.

2F
ail

ure
 of

 th
e r

e3
 pr

oje
ct 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
tea

m 

Th
e e

ffe
cti

ve
ne

ss
 of

 th
e t

ea
m 

de
pe

nd
s u

po
n t

he
 

eff
ec

tiv
e j

oin
t w

ork
ing

 of
 th

e o
ffic

ers
 an

d 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

n w
ith

in 
the

 w
ide

r p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
(e.

g. 
CM

T's
, D

MT
's,
 Fi

na
nc

ial
, L

eg
al 

an
d w

as
te 

tea
ms

). T
he

 Pr
oje

ct 
Te

am
 is

 de
live

rin
g t

he
 

co
ntr

ac
t s

uc
ce

ss
ful

ly 
bu

t m
ay

 be
 le

ss
 su

cc
es

sfu
l  

Co
ntr

ac
t 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt
Liv

e
low

hig
h

Co
un

cils
 pr

oje
ct 

tea
m 

co
uld

 br
ief

 3 
CM

T's
 

an
nu

all
y. 

Sh
ari

ng
 of

 be
st 

pra
cti

ce
 an

d l
ea

rni
ng

 
be

tw
ee

n o
ffic

ers
 (o

n w
as

te 
an

d r
ela

ted
 is

su
es

). 
Pr

oje
ct 

Ma
na

ge
r to

 pr
op

os
e s

tru
ctu

re 
to 

su
pp

ort
 

an
d e

mb
ed

 th
e P

FI 
wit

hin
 co

un
cils

 - r
ed

uc
ing

 ris
k 

an
d b

roa
de

nin
g a

wa
ren

es
s. 

Se
ttin

g c
lea

r 
ob

jec
tiv

es
 fo

r th
e P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

is 
es

se
nti

al.

So
me

 sh
ari
ng

 of
 pr

ac
tic
es
. R

e3
 Pr

oje
ct 

Te
am

 ar
e p

lan
nin

g a
 se

rie
s o

f w
ork

sh
op

s 
for

 M
em

be
rs 
aim

ed
 at

 de
ve
lop

ing
 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 pr
ior
itie

s (
Fir

st 
me

eti
ng

 he
d O

ct 
20

10
). 

re3
 M

gm
t T

m

Th
e P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

do
es

 no
t h

av
e a

 cl
ea

r v
isio

n 
as

ide
 fro

m 
the

 de
live

ry 
of 

the
 co

ntr
ac

t. W
ith

ou
t 

the
 co

mm
on

 pu
rpo

se
 an

d d
ire

cti
on

 of
 a 

bu
sin

es
s-

lea
d v

isio
n, 

the
 in

div
idu

al 
co

un
cils

 m
ay

 be
 m

ore
 

ex
po

se
d t

o e
ve

nts
 - r

ea
cti

ve
 ra

the
r th

an
 

pro
ac

tiv
e.

3R
ete

nti
on

 of
 Ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 C
on

tra
cto

rs 
Sta

ff

Pa
rtic

ula
rly

 in
 ar

ea
s s

uc
h a

s c
us

tom
er 

ca
re,

 
op

era
tio

ns
 an

d f
ina

nc
e t

he
re 

are
 cl

ea
r ri

sk
s t

o t
he

 
lev

el 
of 

se
rvi

ce
 th

e c
ou

nc
ils 

(an
d r

es
ide

nts
) 

sh
ou

ld 
ex

pe
ct 

if t
he

 co
ntr

ac
tor

 is
 un

ab
le 

to 
ret

ain
 

qu
ali

ty 
sta

ff a
nd

 to
 en

su
re 

the
y a

re 
pe

rfo
rm

ing
.

Co
ntr

ac
t 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt
Liv

e
me

diu
m

me
diu

m

Pla
y a

 ro
le 

in 
rec

rut
im

en
t. S

ha
re 

tra
ini

ng
 an

d 
lev

els
 of

 se
rvi

ce
. C

ou
nc

ils 
giv

e a
nd

 re
ce

ive
 di

rec
t 

fee
db

ac
k t

o f
ron

tlin
e s

taf
f (p

art
icu

lar
ly 
HW

RC
). 

Co
nti

nu
e t

o r
ais

e i
ss

ue
 of

 ad
eq

ua
te 

co
ve

r w
ith

 th
e 

co
ntr

ac
tor

.

Co
un

cils
 at

ten
de

d t
he

 in
ter

vie
ws

 fo
r n

ew
 G

en
era

l 
Ma

na
ge

r (N
ov

 08
).  

Sh
are

d t
rai

nin
g f

or 
Co

ntr
ac

tor
 

an
d C

ou
nc

il O
ffic

ers
 on

 w
as

te 
leg

isla
tio

n/i
ss

ue
s 

(N
ov

 10
). E

du
ca

tio
n a

nd
 W

as
te 

Mi
n' 

sta
ff b

oth
 le

ft 
in 

Se
pt 

20
10

, W
RG

 ha
ve

 fil
led

 on
e p

os
t, C

ou
nc

ils 
pro

po
se

 to
 ta

ke
 C

om
ms

 ro
le 

ba
ck

 in
-ho

us
e.

re3
 M

gm
t T

m

Th
e l

ev
el 

of 
se

rvi
ce

 pr
ov

ide
d i

n t
he

 co
un

cils
' 

na
me

 m
us

t b
e h

igh
. T

he
 co

un
cils

 do
, a

nd
 sh

ou
ld,

 
ret

ain
 a 

ke
en

 in
ter

es
t in

 th
is 

are
a. 

11
Pla

nn
ers

 Fa
rm

: n
eig

hb
ou

rs/
co

mp
lai

nts
Co

mp
lai

nts
 ab

ou
t o

do
urs

 em
an

ati
ng

 fro
m 

Pla
nn

ers
 Fa

rm
 co

mp
os

tin
g f

ac
ility

. 
Fa

cili
ty 

Liv
e

low
me

diu
m

 C
rew

s t
o c

on
tin

ue
 to

 m
on

ito
r g

/w
 pl

ac
ed

 ou
t fo

r 
co

lle
cti

on
 by

 re
sid

en
ts.

 C
ou

nc
ils 

to 
inf

orm
 

res
ide

nts
 ab

ou
t c

on
ten

t. M
on

ito
rin

g. 
Lia

iso
n w

ith
 

ne
igh

bo
urs

 an
d E

A. 
Co

nti
nu

ed
 di

alo
gu

e b
etw

ee
n 

all
 pa

rtie
s.

Lic
en

ce
 fo

r th
e s

ite
 no

w 
tra

ns
fer

red
 fro

m 
BF

BC
 to

 
Sh

ort
s. 

Th
is 

sim
pli

fie
s t

he
 ro

le 
of 

the
 co

un
cil 

in 
ter

ms
 of

 en
for

ce
me

nt.
Sh

ort
s, 

W
RG

 an
d C

ou
nc

ils 
Pr

oje
ct 

Te
am

 ha
ve

 w
ork

ed
 to

ge
the

r to
 m

an
ag

e 
thi

s i
ss

ue

13
All

oc
ati

on
 of

 to
nn

ag
es

 - W
es

t B
erk

sh
ire

W
es

t B
erk

s d
o n

ot 
ag

ree
 to

 pa
y t

he
ir s

ha
re 

of 
the

 
co

sts
 of

 th
e H

W
RC

 at
 Sm

all
me

ad
Fin

an
cia

l
Ju

n-0
8L

ive
me

diu
m

me
diu

m

Co
nti

nu
ing

 ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 w

ith
 W

es
t B

erk
s. 

Sh
ou

ld 
tha

t fa
il, 
co

un
cils

 w
ou

ld 
ha

ve
 to

 co
ns

ide
r e

ith
er 

to 
be

ar 
co

sts
 th

em
se

lve
s o

r m
ea

su
res

 to
 pr

ev
en

t 
the

 ac
ce

ss
 of

 W
es

t B
erk

s. 

Ve
rba

l a
gre

em
en

t w
ith

 W
es

t B
erk

s O
ffic

ers
 on

 
me

tho
d o

f c
alc

ula
tio

n (
Ju

ly 
20

10
). N

eg
oti

ati
on

s 
on

go
ing

 in
 re

lat
ion

 to
 si

ze
 of

 re
pa

ym
en

t a
nd

 
on

go
ing

 pa
ym

en
ts.

re3
 M

gm
t T

m,
 

JW
DB

, w
as

te 
off

ice
rs 

an
d 

Co
un

cils

re3
 Pr

op
os

ed
 

Pa
ym

en
t 

Sc
he

du
le:

 20
08

/09
 

26
2,5

00
; 2

00
9/1

0 
£2

13
,31

8; 
20

10
/11

 
£2

60
,52

6

Th
ere

 is
 th

e p
ote

nti
al 

for
 ot

he
r c

ou
nc

ils 
to 

be
 

inv
olv

ed
 - W

ind
so

r a
nd

 M
aid

en
he

ad
, S

ou
th 

Ox
for

ds
hir

e, 
Ha

mp
sh

ire
 - a

lth
ou

gh
 th

e l
ev

els
 of

 
pa

tro
na

ge
 ar

e f
ar 

low
er 

at 
pre

se
nt.

15
LA

TS
: C

ou
nc

il/s
 ex

ce
ed

 al
low

an
ce

 20
12

/13
 

(Ta
rge

t Y
ea

r 2
 of

 3)
La

ke
sid

e i
s o

pe
rat

ion
al,

 LA
TS

 co
mp

lia
nc

e i
s 

like
ly.

Fin
an

cia
l

pri
or 

to 
20

13
Liv

e
low

hig
h

Co
un

cils
 Pr

oje
ct 

Te
am

 al
rea

dy
 pr

ep
ari

ng
 in

fo 
for

 
wa

ste
 of

fic
ers

 w
hic

h s
ho

ws
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ag
ain

st 
co

ntr
ac

t re
qu

ire
me

nts
 an

d L
AT

S. 
Th

is 
inf

o s
ho

uld
 

en
ab

le 
co

un
cils

 to
 st

ay
 on

 ta
rge

t. T
arg

ett
ed

 
ed

uc
ati

on
 to

 im
pro

ve
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

. R
ev

iew
 of

 
co

lle
cti

on
 se

rvi
ce

 pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 ac

ros
s 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

. M
itig

ati
ng

 th
is 

ris
k v

ia 
ne

go
tia

tio
ns

 
wit

h L
ak

es
ide

 an
d W

RG
 fo

r R
BC

 an
d W

BC
 (w

ho
 

ha
ve

 le
ss

 of
 a 

LA
TS

 su
rpl

us
 th

an
 BF

BC
) to

 se
nd

 
an

 ad
dit

ion
al 

10
,00

0tp
a t

o E
fW

.

Th
ree

 co
un

cils
 w

ork
ing

 to
ge

the
r o

n j
oin

t re
vie

ws
 

an
d e

du
ca

tio
n t

o i
mp

rov
e, 

wh
ere

 at
 al

l p
os

sib
le,

 
the

 ef
fic

ien
cy

 of
 ex

ist
ing

 co
lle

cti
on

s. 
W
BC

 
Re

vie
win

g C
oll

ec
tio

ns
. A

dd
itio

na
l E

fW
 to

nn
ag

e 
be

ing
 ne

go
tia

ted
.

co
un

cils
 pr

oje
ct 

tea
m 

an
d w

as
te 

off
ice

rs

LA
TS

 co
mp

lia
nc

e i
s m

on
ito

red
 qu

art
erl

y v
ia 

W
as

te 
Da

ta 
Flo

w.
 C

ou
nc

ils 
ha

ve
 se

pa
rat

e 
all

oc
ati

on
s s

o w
ill b

e i
n d

iffe
ren

t L
AT

S p
os

itio
ns

. 
Fa

ilu
re 

v.u
nli

ke
ly 
wit

h L
EfW

.

15
a

LA
TS

: C
ou

nc
ils 

ex
ce

ed
 al

low
an

ce
s 2

01
5/1

6 t
o 

20
18

/19
 (N

on
-Ta

rge
t Y

ea
rs)

RB
C 

an
d W

BC
 ar

e l
ike

ly 
to 

ex
ce

ed
 th

eir
 LA

TS
 

all
oc

ati
on

s i
n t

his
 pe

rio
d. 

BF
BC

 is
 no

t e
xp

ec
ted

 to
 

ex
ce

ed
 un

til 
20

19
/20

. 
Fin

an
cia

l
pri

or 
20

18
/19

Liv
e

hig
h

hig
h

Co
un

cils
 pr

oje
ct 

tea
m 

to 
ma

int
ain

 a 
vie

w 
of 

loc
al 

an
d r

eg
ion

al 
ma

rke
ts 

an
d t

o s
tay

 ab
rea

st 
of 

tec
hn

olo
gic

al 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

. M
ax

im
ise

 yi
eld

 of
 

ex
ist

ing
 re

cy
clin

g c
oll

ec
tio

n s
tre

am
s (

ch
ea

pe
st 

op
tio

n, 
alt

ho
ug

h m
ay

 no
t b

e s
uff

icie
nt 

on
 its

 ow
n).

 
Pr

oc
ure

 ne
w 

pro
ce

ss
ing

 e.
g. 

foo
d w

as
te.

 
Alt

ern
ati

ve
ly 
the

 C
ou

nc
ils 

wo
uld

 ne
ed

 to
 se

cu
re 

LA
TS

 pe
rm

its
 fo

r th
e p

eri
od

 up
 to

 an
d i

nc
lud

ing
 

20
18

/19
, o

r p
ay

 pe
na

ltie
s.

An
 ad

dit
ion

al 
10

,00
0 t

on
ne

s E
fW

 is
 be

ing
 

ne
go

tia
ted

. E
ve

n w
ith

 th
is,

 R
BC

 an
d W

BC
 ar

e 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o e

xc
ee

d t
he

ir L
AT

S a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 in

 
20

15
/16

 an
d 2

01
6/1

7 r
es

pe
cti

ve
ly.
  

co
un

cils
 pr

oje
ct 

tea
m 

an
d w

as
te 

off
ice

rs

Be
tw

ee
n £

6.6
 

mi
llio

n a
nd

 £7
.1 

mi
llio

n d
ep

en
din

g 
on

 la
nd

fill 
tax

 
es

ca
lat

or.

Ba
se

d o
n c

os
t o

f la
nd

filli
ng

 ex
ce

ss
 to

nn
es

, p
lus

 
the

 pu
rch

as
e o

f L
AT

S p
erm

its
 at

 £1
50

 pe
r p

erm
it 

(al
tho

ug
h i

t s
ho

uld
 be

 no
ted

 th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

ils 
co

uld
 de

cid
e t

o p
ay

 in
 ex

ce
ss

 of
 £1

50
 pe

r p
erm

it 
ins

tea
d o

f s
im

ply
 pa

yin
g t

he
 £1

50
 pe

na
lty
, a

s t
his

 
wo

uld
 av

oid
 fu

rth
er 

rep
erc

us
sio

ns
 of

 ha
vin

g t
o 

sh
are

 in
 th

e U
K f

ine
 fro

m 
the

 EU
).

16
LA

TS
: C

ou
nc

ils 
ex

ce
ed

 al
low

an
ce

 20
19

/20
20

 
(ta

rge
t Y

ea
r 3

 of
 3)

V,d
iffi
cu

lt t
o p

red
ict

 w
ith

 ac
cu

rac
y t

he
 lik

ely
ho

od
 of

 
LA

TS
 co

mp
lia

nc
e a

t th
e e

nd
 of

 th
e d

ec
ad

e. 
To

 
ac

hie
ve

 LA
TS

 co
mp

lia
nc

e, 
all

 3 
co

un
cils

 m
ay

 
ne

ed
 ad

dit
ion

al,
 no

n-l
an

dfi
ll, 
pro

ce
ss

ing
 ca

pa
cit

y 
to 

su
pp

lem
en

t e
ne

rgy
 fro

m 
wa

ste
 an

d t
he

 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

 th
ey

 w
ill m

ak
e t

o t
he

ir o
wn

 
co

lle
cti

on
 sy

ste
ms

.
Fin

an
cia

l
pri

or 
to 

20
20

Liv
e

hig
h

hig
h

Co
un

cils
 pr

oje
ct 

tea
m 

to 
ma

int
ain

 a 
vie

w 
of 

loc
al 

an
d r

eg
ion

al 
ma

rke
ts 

an
d t

o s
tay

 ab
rea

st 
of 

tec
hn

olo
gic

al 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

. M
ax

im
ise

 yi
eld

 of
 

ex
ist

ing
 re

cy
clin

g c
oll

ec
tio

n s
tre

am
s (

ch
ea

pe
st 

op
tio

n, 
alt

ho
ug

h m
ay

 no
t b

e s
uff

icie
nt 

on
 its

 ow
n).

 
Pr

oc
ure

 ne
w 

pro
ce

ss
ing

 e.
g. 

foo
d w

as
te.

  
Alt

ern
ati

ve
ly 
the

 C
ou

nc
ils 

wo
uld

 ne
ed

 to
 se

cu
re 

LA
TS

 pe
rm

its
 fo

r 2
01

9/2
0, 

or 
pa

y p
en

alt
ies

.

co
un

cils
 pr

oje
ct 

tea
m 

an
d w

as
te 

off
ice

rs

Be
tw

ee
n £

4.7
 

mi
llio

n a
nd

 £5
.2 

mi
llio

n, 
de

pe
nd

ing
 

on
 la

nd
fill 

tax
 

es
ca

lat
or.

Ba
se

d o
n c

os
t o

f la
nd

filli
ng

 ex
ce

ss
 to

nn
es

, p
lus

 
the

 pu
rch

as
e o

f L
AT

S p
erm

its
 at

 £1
50

 pe
r p

erm
it 

(al
tho

ug
h i

t s
ho

uld
 be

 no
ted

 th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

ils 
co

uld
 de

cid
e t

o p
ay

 in
 ex

ce
ss

 of
 £1

50
 pe

r p
erm

it 
ins

tea
d o

f s
im

ply
 pa

yin
g t

he
 £1

50
 pe

na
lty
, a

s t
his

 
wo

uld
 av

oid
 fu

rth
er 

rep
erc

us
sio

ns
 of

 ha
vin

g t
o 

sh
are

 in
 th

e U
K f

ine
 fro

m 
the

 EU
).

17
JW

DB
 fa

ilu
re

Th
e B

oa
rd 

is 
co

mp
ris

ed
 of

 M
em

be
rs 

fro
m 

3 
dif

fer
en

t c
ou

nc
ils 

wit
h p

ote
nti

all
y d

iffe
rin

g n
ee

ds
 

an
d p

rio
riti

es
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
is 

an
 

im
po

rta
nt 

fac
tor

 - a
 w

ea
ke

nin
g i

n t
his

 ar
ea

 m
ay

 be
 

un
he

lpf
ul 

in 
ter

ms
 of

 ac
hie

vin
g t

he
 ai

ms
 of

 th
e P

FI 
co

ntr
ac

t.
Co

un
cils

low
me

diu
m

Ag
ree

d a
nn

ua
l w

ork
pla

n f
or 

JW
DB

. B
rie

fin
gs

 by
 

Co
un

cil 
Pr

oje
ct 

Te
am

. A
ud

it o
f P

FI 
to 

as
su

re 
Me

mb
ers

 of
 on

go
ing

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

n o
f P

FI 
an

d 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
. 

An
nu

al 
W
ork

pla
n i

n p
lac

e. 
W
ork

sh
op

s, 
to 

se
t 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 pr
ior

itie
s, 

pla
nn

ed
 fo

r A
utu

mn
 20

10
. 

Re
gu

lar
 br

ief
ing

s b
y C

ou
nc

il P
roj

ec
t T

ea
m.

 
re3

 M
gm

t T
m

43



18
W
RG

 Bo
ard

Th
e c

ou
nc

ils 
are

 at
 ris

k i
f th

ey
 do

 no
t d

ev
elo

p a
nd

 
ma

int
ain

 a 
rel

ati
on

sh
ip 

wit
h t

he
 W

RG
 Bo

ard
. It

 is
 

im
po

rta
nt 

tha
t th

e r
ela

tio
ns

hip
 is

 on
e o

f e
qu

als
. In

 
pra

cti
ce

, n
o r

ela
tio

ns
hip

 cu
rre

ntl
y e

xis
ts.

Co
ntr

ac
t 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt
Liv

e
hig

h
me

diu
m

Pr
ev

iou
s s

ug
ge

sti
on

s h
av

e i
nc

lud
ed

...3
60

 de
gre

e 
fee

db
ac

k, 
6 m

on
thl

y l
ett

ers
 fro

m 
JW

DB
 to

 W
RG

 
Bo

ard
, a

n a
nn

ua
l m

ee
tin

g. 

Of
fic

ers
 ha

ve
 m

et 
the

 ne
w 

CX
 of

 W
RG

 an
d h

av
e 

a f
rui

tfu
l w

ork
ing

 re
lat

ion
sh

ip 
wit

h t
he

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 
W
RG

 Bo
ard

 M
em

be
r fo

r o
ur 

PF
I. O

ffic
ers

 ha
ve

 
pla

nn
ed

 to
 ho

ld 
a s

ec
on

d w
ork

sh
op

 (la
te 

20
10

 or
 

ea
rly

 20
11

) a
t w

hic
h W

RG
 an

d c
ou

nc
il o

ffic
ers

 
ca

n r
es

po
nd

 to
 th

e p
rio

riti
es

 id
en

tifi
ed

 in
 th

e f
irs

t 
wo

rks
ho

p (
Oc

t 2
01

0).
 

re3
 M

gm
t T

m
Pr

inc
ipl

e o
f a

 lin
k, 

be
tw

ee
n t

he
 re

sp
ec

tiv
e B

oa
rds

, 
ag

ree
d w

ith
 W

RG
 at

 JW
DB

 m
tg 

on
 25

 06
 08

. 

19
Le

ga
l S

up
po

rt

Th
e c

ou
nc

ils 
ne

ed
 to

 re
tai

n a
n a

pp
rop

ria
te 

lev
el 

of 
leg

al 
su

pp
ort

. T
he

re 
are

 tw
o m

ain
 el

em
en

ts 
to 

tha
t 

req
uir

em
en

t: (
i) s

up
po

rt i
n m

an
ag

ing
 th

e P
FI 

co
ntr

ac
t a

nd
 co

ntr
ac

tor
 (ii

) s
up

po
rt i

n m
an

ag
ing

 
the

 co
un

cils
 ow

n J
oin

t W
ork

ing
 Ag

ree
me

nt.
 

Co
ntr

ac
t 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt
Liv

e
me

diu
m

low

A b
ud

ge
t is

 re
qu

ire
d t

o e
na

ble
 th

e M
gm

t te
am

 to
 

be
 ab

le 
to 

bu
y i
n s

pe
cia

list
 ad

vic
e a

s r
eq

uir
ed

 an
d 

wit
h a

dv
ice

 fro
m 

He
ad

 of
 Le

ga
l S

erv
ice

s a
t R

BC
. 

It i
s p

rop
os

ed
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

e l
ev

el 
of 

fun
din

g 
av

ail
ab

le 
for

 ex
ter

na
l le

ga
l a

dv
ice

 in
 th

e 2
01

1/1
2 

bu
dg

et 
in 

res
po

ns
e t

o r
eq

uir
em

en
t to

 fin
d s

av
ing

s. 
Th

e C
on

sti
tut

ion
 of

 th
e J

oin
t W

as
te 

Bo
ard

 
sp

ec
ifie

s t
ha

t le
ga

l a
dv

ice
 re

lat
ing

 to
 th

e c
ou

nc
ils 

Jo
int

 W
ork

ing
 Ag

ree
me

nt 
be

 pr
ov

ide
d i

n-h
ou

se
.

Bu
dg

et 
for

 20
11

/12
 dr

aft
ed

.
JW

DB

20
Fin

an
cia

l S
up

po
rt

Co
un

cils
 fa

il t
o b

ud
ge

t a
de

qu
ate

ly 
to 

co
ve

r a
nn

ua
l 

co
st 

of 
wa

ste
 pr

oc
es

sin
g (

inc
lud

ing
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Co

sts
). B

ud
ge

t p
res

su
res

 at
 in

div
idu

al 
co

un
cils

 
are

 a 
fac

t o
f li
fe.

 H
ow

ev
er 

the
 co

un
cils

 ha
ve

 a 
res

po
ns

ibi
lity

 (3
.2.

9 o
f J

W
A)

 to
 'e

ns
ure

 th
ey

 ta
ke

 
all

 re
as

on
ab

le 
ste

ps
'  t

o a
ss

ist
 th

e A
dm

in 
Au

tho
rity

, in
clu

din
g m

ak
ing

 pa
ym

en
ts 

of 
the

ir 
're

sp
ec

tiv
e s

ha
re 

of 
the

 U
nit

ary
 C

ha
rge

'. 
Fin

an
cia

l
 

Liv
e

low
hig

h

Pr
oje

ct 
Te

am
 an

d i
nd

ivid
ua

l a
cc

ou
nta

nts
 lia

ise
 

reg
ula

rly
.Ad

eq
ua

te 
hig

h l
ev

el 
su

pp
ort

 gi
ve

n t
o t

he
 

re3
 bu

dg
et 

du
rin

g b
ud

ge
t s

ett
ing

. E
ffe

cti
ve

 
inf

orm
ati

on
 to

, a
nd

 en
ga

ge
me

nt 
wit

h, 
Me

mb
ers

 
du

rin
g t

he
 bu

dg
et 

se
ttin

g p
eri

od
 an

d r
eg

ula
r 

rep
ort

ing
 of

 bu
dg

et 
po

sit
ion

 to
 th

e B
oa

rd.
 

Mo
nth

ly 
me

eti
ng

s o
f re

3 M
gm

t T
ea

m 
an

d 
qu

art
erl

y w
ith

 in
div

idu
al 

co
un

cil 
ac

co
un

tan
ts 

to 
en

su
re 

dia
log

ue
 an

d f
ee

db
ac

k i
n b

uil
din

g a
nd

 
se

ttin
g b

ud
ge

ts.
re3

 M
gm

t T
m

Pe
r 2

01
1/1

2 -
20

15
/16

 pr
op

os
ed

 
bu

dg
et,

 up
da

ted
 

No
v 1

0.

Th
e f

ina
nc

ial
 m

od
el 

se
ts 

ou
t th

e e
xp

ec
ted

 co
sts

 
thr

ou
gh

ou
t th

e l
ife

 of
 th

e c
on

tra
ct.

 A 
4 y

ea
r b

ud
ge

t 
pro

jec
tio

n h
as

 be
en

 ci
rcu

lat
ed

 to
 ac

co
un

tan
ts 

at 
ea

ch
 C

ou
nc

il -
 to

 be
 up

da
ted

 an
nu

all
y.

21
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 Fa
ilu

re 
(co

un
cils

)

Th
e c

ou
nc

ils 
are

 re
qu

ire
d t

o a
ch

iev
e c

ert
ain

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 le
ve

ls 
wit

hin
 th

e c
on

tra
ct.

 Th
e 

co
ntr

ac
tor

 do
es

 no
t a

cc
ep

t ri
sk

 fo
r p

erf
orm

an
ce

 
fai

lur
e d

ue
 to

 in
ad

eq
ua

te 
de

live
ry 

of 
ma

ter
ial

. T
he

 
W
FM

 pr
ofi

le 
ch

an
ge

s o
ve

r ti
me

 (e
.g.

 gr
ee

n w
as

te 
jum

ps
 in

 20
09

)
Co

un
cils

Liv
e

me
diu

m
hig

h

Co
un

cils
 to

 re
vie

w 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
for

ma
tio

n a
nd

 
mo

de
llin

g f
rom

 co
un

cils
 pr

oje
ct 

tea
m 

an
d m

ak
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 ch

an
ge

s/i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 

as
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

. R
ep

ort
 on

 Jo
int

 W
as

te 
Au

tho
riti

es
 to

 
JW

DB
 on

 18
 06

 08
. D

raf
t p

rot
oc

ols
 fo

r c
ou

nc
il 

gro
up

s. 
Co

un
cils

 pr
oje

ct 
tea

m 
wo

rki
ng

 w
ith

 w
as

te 
off

ice
rs 

an
d a

cc
ou

nta
nts

.

Co
un

cil 
Of

fic
ers

 m
et 

on
 20

/05
/09

 an
d a

gre
ed

 to
 

inv
es

tig
ate

 w
ay

s o
f w

ork
ing

 to
ge

the
r m

ore
 

str
ate

gic
all

y t
o r

ea
lise

 th
e b

en
efi

ts 
aff

ord
ed

 by
 th

e 
PF

I. R
ep

ort
 to

 Se
pt 

09
 JW

DB

re3
 M

gm
t T

ea
m,

 
co

un
cils

 pr
oje

ct 
tea

m 
an

d w
as

te 
off

ice
rs

Ma
xim

um
 

ex
po

su
re 

to 
Re

cy
cla

te 
Inc

om
e 

Co
mp

en
sa

tio
n 

cla
im

 = 
£1

.5m
illio

n 
in 

20
10

/11
. 

Ind
ex

ed
 an

nu
all

y 
ac

co
rdi

ng
 to

 R
PIX

. Th
e C

on
tra

cto
r is

 en
titl
ed

 to
 cl

aim
 fo

r lo
st 

inc
om

e 
on

 sa
les

 of
 re

cy
cla

te 
du

e t
o l

ow
 to

nn
ag

e, 
po

or 
co

mp
os

itio
n, 

an
d l

ow
 or

 ze
ro 

ma
rke

t v
alu

e.

22
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 Fa
ilu

re 
(C

on
tra

cto
r)

Th
e s

uc
ce

ss
 of

 th
e P

FI 
Co

ntr
ac

t re
lie

s o
n t

he
 

su
cc

es
sfu

l p
erf

orm
an

ce
 of

 th
e c

on
tra

cto
r. 

Co
ntr

ac
t 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt
Liv

e
me

diu
m

hig
h

Co
un

cils
 to

 m
on

ito
r p

erf
orm

an
ce

 of
 C

on
tra

cto
r to

 
en

su
re 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 ris

k n
ot 

tra
ns

fer
red

 to
 

co
un

cils
. P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

an
d '

ad
de

d v
alu

e' 
ini

tia
tiv

es
 

to 
be

 en
co

ura
ge

d.
Co

ntr
ac

t M
an

ag
em

en
t, n

eg
oti

ati
on

s w
ith

 
co

ntr
ac

tor
, p

erf
orm

an
ce

 m
od

ell
ing

. 

re3
 M

gm
t T

ea
m,

 
co

un
cils

 pr
oje

ct 
tea

m 
an

d w
as

te 
off

ice
rs

23
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 Fa

ilu
re 

(co
un

cil
s) 
(2)

Co
nta

mi
na

tio
n o

f c
ou

nc
il M

DR
 af

fec
ts 
bo

th 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 an

d c
os
t. W

hil
st 
the

 av
era

ge
 

rat
e o

f c
on

tam
ina

tio
n w

ith
in 
Co

un
cil
 

co
lle
cti
on

s h
as
 re

du
ce
d, 

it i
s s

till
 im

po
rta

nt 
tha

t a
ll c

on
trib

uto
rs 
(cr

ew
s, 
sta

ff, 
PR

) w
ork

 
to 

red
uc
e i
t's
 im

pli
ca
tio
ns
. C

on
tra

cto
r 

en
titl
ed

 to
 le
vy
 ad

dit
ion

al 
ch
arg

e a
nd

/or
 

Ex
cu
sin

g C
au

se
 at

 in
cre

as
ed

 le
ve
ls 
of 

co
nta

mi
na

tio
n.

Co
un

cil
s

 
Liv

e
hig

h
me

diu
m

Im
pro

ve
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
MD

R 
thr

ou
gh

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
n 

wit
h r

es
ide

nts
. In

vo
lve

 co
lle

cti
on

 cr
ew

s a
nd

 ot
he

r 
co

un
cil 

sta
ff. 

Iso
lat

e a
rea

s w
ith

 po
or 

qu
ali

ty 
rec

ord
 

an
d t

arg
et 

the
m 

wit
h s

pe
cif

ic 
inf

orm
ati

on
 or

 pr
e-

pro
ce

ss
 th

eir
 w

as
te.

Co
un

cil
s P

roj
ec
t T

ea
m,

 W
RG

 an
d w

as
te 

tea
ms

 ha
ve
 de

ve
lop

ed
 an

 ye
ar-

lon
g p

lan
 of

 
ac
tio
ns
 to

 im
pro

ve
 re

sid
en

ts 
un

de
rst
an

din
g 

of 
co
nta

mi
na

tio
n w

ork
 to

 ed
uc
ate

 an
d i
f 

ne
ed

 be
 en

for
ce
 ag

ain
st 
ris
ing

 
co
nta

mi
na

tio
n. 

Co
un

cil
s P

roj
ec
t T

ea
m 

lia
ise

d w
ith
 W

RG
 ov

er 
tria

ls 
for

 
im
pro

ve
me

nts
 in
 M
RF

 op
era

tio
n t

o r
ed

uc
e 

're
jec

tio
ns
'; t
he

se
 tri
als

 ar
e c

urr
en

tly
 ta

kin
g 

pla
ce
.

Co
un

cil
s/C

ou
nc
i

ls 
Pr
oje

ct 
Te

am

Co
nta

mi
na

tio
n 

pe
na

lty
 pa

ya
ble

 
on

 al
l k
erb

sid
e 

MD
R.
 20

10
/11

 
pe

na
lty
 w
ill 
be

 
c£
80

k.

Br
ief

ing
 no

te 
se

nt 
to 

co
un

cil 
tea

ms
 de

sc
rib

ing
 

na
tur

e o
f c

on
tra

ctu
al 

ris
ks

 an
d o

ffe
r o

f a
ss

ist
an

ce
 

(10
/9/

08
). I

t is
 no

t th
e i

de
al 

wo
rd 

for
 

co
mm

un
ica

tin
g w

ith
 re

sid
en

ts 
bu

t 'C
on

tam
ina

tio
n' 

is 
the

 co
ntr

ac
tua

l te
rm

 ap
pli

ca
ble

 to
 th

is 
ris

k.

24
La

nd
fill
 G
as
 bu

ild
-up

 in
 Sm

all
me

ad
 fa

cil
ity

A b
uil
d-u

p o
f m

eth
an

e w
as
 de

tec
ted

 in
 a 

roo
m 

wit
hin

 th
e S

ma
llm

ea
d H

W
RC

 (N
ov
 

08
). T

he
 fa

cil
ity
 is
 pa

rtly
 co

ns
tru

cte
d o

ve
r a

 
clo

se
d l
an

dfi
ll.

Fa
cil
lity

Liv
e

low
hig

h
Co

ntr
ac
tor

's 
res

po
ns
ibi
lity

 to
 m

itig
ate

.

Co
ntr

ac
tor

 an
d E

PC
 co

ntr
ac
tor

 ha
ve
 be

en
 

mo
nit
ori
ng

 ga
s l
ev
els

 an
d c

los
ed

 du
cti
ng

 by
 

wh
ich

 ga
s e

nte
red

 th
e f

ac
ilit
y. 
Co

ntr
ac
tor

 
ha

s a
lso

 be
en

 lia
isi
ng

 w
ith
 EA

. N
o f

urt
he

r 
inc

ide
nts

 si
nc
e N

ov
 08

.
Co

ntr
ac
tor

Th
is 

sit
ua

tio
n h

as
 re

ma
ine

d u
nc

ha
ng

ed
 fo

r o
ve

r 
18

 m
on

ths
. M

on
ito

rin
g c

on
tin

ue
s. 

Pr
ob

ab
ility

 
do

wn
gra

de
d t

o '
Lo

w'.

25
Re

vie
w 
of 

Fir
e D

ete
cti
on

 sy
ste

ms
 O
&M

 
Ma

nu
als

Ind
ep

en
de

nt 
ex
pe

rts
 as

se
ss
ed

 th
e l
ev
els

 of
 

pro
tec

tio
n a

nd
 de

tec
tio
n p

rov
ide

d t
hro

ug
h 

the
 de

sig
n a

nd
 bu

ild
 co

ntr
ac
t. A

rea
s o

f 
im
pro

ve
me

nt 
fou

nd
. S

om
e c

ov
ere

d b
y 

ori
gin

al 
co
ntr

ac
t a

nd
 be

ing
 re

cti
fie
d b

y E
PC

 
co
ntr

ac
tor

. O
the

rs 
be

ing
 pr

oc
ure

d b
y W

RG
 

se
pa

rat
ely

. 
Fa

cil
ity

Liv
e

me
diu

m
hig

h
Co

ntr
ac
tor

's 
res

po
ns
ibi
lity

 to
 m

itig
ate

.

Co
ntr

ac
tor

 an
d E

PC
 co

ntr
ac
tor

 ha
ve
 be

en
 

in 
dis

cu
ss
ion

s a
nd

 ar
e s

ee
kin

g r
es
olu

tio
n. 

Pr
oje

ct 
Dir

ec
tor

 ha
s w

ritt
en

 to
 C
on

tra
cto

r to
 

req
ue

st 
as
su
ran

ce
s a

nd
 re

so
lut
ion

. W
RG

 
are

 pr
og

res
sin

g i
ss
ue

 w
ith
 EP

C 
co
ntr

ac
tor

 
at 

a h
igh

 le
ve
l. W

ork
s o

ng
oin

g a
nd

 du
e f

or 
co
mp

let
ion

 Ja
n 2

01
1.

Co
ntr

ac
tor

     
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

44



 
Ev

alu
ati

on
 G

rid
 fo

r re
3 R

isk
 R

eg
ist

er.

Hig
h (

3)
1, 

2, 
15

, 2
0, 

24
21

, 2
2, 

23
, 2

5
15

a, 
16

Me
d (

2)
6, 

7, 
8, 

11
, 1

7
3, 

13
, 

18
,

Lo
w 

(1)
9, 

12
, 

10
, 1

4, 
19

,

 

Impact

Lo
w 

(1)
Me

d (
2)

Hig
h (

3)

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y

45



46

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes - 21 September 2010
	6 Progress Report
	Appendix4 Progess Report Staff (2)

	7 Joint Waste Disposal User Satisfaction Surveys
	Appendix2 to User Satisfaction Surveys Report (2)

	8 Joint Waste Disposal Work Programme
	Reports Containing Exempt Information
	9 Risk Register
	Risk Register vDec102
	Risk Register vDec103


